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AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders of CIMB Thai Bank Public Comphlimited

| have audited the accompanying consolidated an# fimancial statements of CIMB Thai Bank Publicr@many
Limited and its subsidiaries, and of CIMB Thai Bdplblic Company Limited, which comprise the cordatied
and bank statements of financial position as atDétember 2012, and the related consolidated an# ban
statements of comprehensive income, changes ielsblders’ equity and cash flows for the year thedeel, and

a summary of significant accounting policies arnteonotes.

Management’'s Responsibility for the Financial Stadats

Management is responsible for the preparation airdpfesentation of these financial statementscooadance
with Thai Financial Reporting Standards, and fazhsinternal control as management determines isssacy to
enable the preparation of financial statementsatefree from material misstatement, whether ddeaud or error.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on théisancial statements based on my audit. | conduotg audit
in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing. Ehstandards require that | comply with ethical meuents
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasoradgarance about whether the financial statemeatsee from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtairdia evidence about the amounts and disclosurethen
financial statements. The procedures selected deperthe auditor’s judgment, including the assesgroéthe
risks of material misstatement of the financiatesteents, whether due to fraud or error. In makimgsé risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal cori@lant to the entity’s preparation and fair preation of the
financial statements in order to design audit poces that are appropriate in the circumstancesndiufor the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectigsen&f the entity’s internal control. An audit alswludes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting pdicised and the reasonableness of accounting tetimade
by management, as well as evaluating the overafigmtation of the financial statements.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtairedufficient and appropriate to provide a basisnfigr audit
opinion.



Opinion

In my opinion, the consolidated and bank finans@tements referred to above present fairly, inralterial
respects, the consolidated and bank financial iposibf CIMB Thai Bank Public Company Limited and it
subsidiaries, and of CIMB Thai Bank Public Comparipited as at 31 December 2012, and consolidatel an
bank results of operations and cash flows for tharythen ended in accordance with Thai FinancigoRmg
Standards.

Boonlert Kamolchanokkul
Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 5339
PricewaterhouseCoopers ABAS Ltd.

Bangkok
27 February 2013



CIMB Thai Bank Public Company Limited
Statements of financial position
As at 31 December 2012 and 2011

Assets

Cash

Interbank and money market items, net

Derivatives assets

Investments, net

Investments in subsidiaries, net

Loans and accrued interest receivables
Loans

Accrued interest receivables

Total loans and accrued interest receivables
Less Deferred revenue

Less Allowance for doubtful debts

Less Revaluation allowance for debt restructuring

Loans and accrued interest receivables, net
Customers'’ liability under acceptance
Properties for sale, net

Premises and equipments, net

Intangible assets, net

Accrued income from Thai Asset Management Corponati

Other assets, net

Total assets

Director

Consolidated The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
Notes Baht Baht Baht Baht

3,132,947,660 3,122,846,554

6 10,127,546,19 5,205,245,039
7 2,474,146,798 2,526,862,210
8 40,323,332,324  32,543,164,312
8 153,912,645 1536952
9
142,153,766,214 121,719,437,344
369,951,501 279,098,921

3,130,139,363 3,120,682,15
10,094,174,784 4,577,356,327
2,474,146,798 2,526,862,2

40,323,332,324  32,43820
1,033,147,979 1,923,143,017

136,705,713,235 10M98,798
375,369,578 277,958,703

1477323715 121,998,536,265
(3,307,156,919)  (2,429,980,354)

137,081,082,813 117,228,087,5
(2,786,485) (3,173,910
(3,085,180,004)  (3,094,393,744)
(15,823,467) (10,958,714)

133,977,292,857 114,120,431,13

10 (3,396,411,721)  45315,853)
11 5,823,467) (10,958,714)
13389408 116,212,081,344
35,752,402 69,927,687
12 1,575,564,704  1,484,488,359
13 3,568,232,948  3,830,671,693
14 427,876,223 470,613,974
46 2,354,020,580  1,009,565,667
15 1,538,414,867  1,393,714,576

35,752,402 69,927,687
1,527,459,397 1,46((680,
3,492,719,658 3,673904,

422,091,055 443,258,237

2,354,020,580 1,00%68
1,404,654,619 1,133,235,

201,516,072,954 168,023,094,060

200,268,931,816 16@%6,524

Director

The accompanying notes to consolidated and sepfaratecial statements from page 11 to 95 are ayial part of the financial statements




CIMB Thai Bank Public Company Limited
Statements of financial position(Cont'd)
As at 31 December 2012 and 2011

Liabilities and Shareholders’ equity

Liabilities

Deposits

Interbank and money market items

Liability payable on demand

Financial liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss

Derivatives liabilities

Debt issued and borrowings

Bank’s liability under acceptance

Provisions

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Shareholders’ equity

Share capital

Registered
26,105,495,608 ordinary shares of Baht O&ithe
16,315,934,756 ordinary shares of Baht 0.50 ea

Issued and paid-up share capital
21,084,878,025 ordinary shares of Baht @&ith
16,315,934,756 ordinary shares of Baht 0.50 ea
Premium on share capital
Other reserves

Accretion of equity interests in subsidiary

Retained earnings
Appropriated - statutory reserve

Unappropriated

Equity attributable to
Attributable to owners of the Bank
Non-controlling interest

Total shareholders’ equity

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

Consolidated The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
Notes Baht Baht Baht Baht
16 135,133,586,231 101,573,954,409 135,284,578,984 2390200,733
17 11,309,672,672 864952,067 10,359,672,672 4,549,969,313
345,429,219 144,101,067 345,429,219 144,101,067
18 1,535,308,447 - 1,535,308,447 -
7 2,002,403,000 2,270,622,392 2,002,403,000 2,270,822,3
19 26,226,572,329  40,315,688,037 26,226,572,329  4(323(,85
35,752,402 69,927,687 35,752,402 69,927,687
20 1,429,732,358 1,506,655,509 1,407,123,231 1,455,269,
21 3,799,144,302 3,944,270,222 3,483,259,281 3,323)083,
181,817,600,960 154,612,171,390 180,680,099,565 15331,106

22

13,052,747,804

13,052,747,804

8,157,967,378

8,157,967,378

10,542,439,013 10,542,439,013
8,157,967,378 8,157,967,378
3,867,738,430  1,483,266,796 3,867,738,430  1,483,266,79
23 1,362,816,577  1,347,561,648 1,362,816,577  1,338983,
(42,753,751) - - -
24 187,500,000 JBEH000 187,500,000 129,500,000
3,780,731,725  2,203,340,511 3,628,338,231  2,131,515,42
19,698,471,994  13,321,636,333  19,588,832,251  13,235128
- 89,286,337 - -
19,698,471,994  13,410,922,670  19,588,832,251  13,23328
201,516,072,954 168,023,094,060  200,268,931,816 16[£86,524

The accompanying notes to consolidated and sefarateial statements from page 11 to 95 are aygnal part of the financial statements




CIMB Thai Bank Public Company Limited
Statements of comprehensive income

For the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011

Interest income
Interest expenses

Net interest income
Fees and service income
Fees and service expenses

Net fee and service income
Gains on trading and
foreign exchange transactions, net
Gains on financial liabilities designated
at fair value through profit or loss, net
Gains on investments, net
Gain sharing from the management of
the non-performing loans
by Thai Asset Management Corporation
Other operating income

Total operating income

Other operating expenses
Employee expenses
Directors’ remuneration
Premises and equipment expenses
Taxes and duties
Others

Total other operating expenses

Bad and doubtful debts and impairment losses

Profit from continuing operation
before income tax expenses
Income tax expenses

Profit from continuing operation

Profit (loss) after tax of discontinued operation

Net profit for the year

The accompanying notes to consolidated and seffarateial statements from page 11 to 95 are aynal part of the financial statements

Consolidated The Bank

2012 2011 2012 2011

Notes Baht Baht Baht Baht

28 10,168,159,353 8,084,721,497  9,171,803,562 7,425,821

29 (4,961,478,452) (3,451,570,011) (4,919,385,099) 4@Mul5,412)
5,206,680,901  4,633,151,486  4,252,418,463 3,984,206,04
1,010,746,092 756,910,528 899,847,124 652,933,947
(145,308,599) (173,546,115) (209,452,514) (220,391,462
30 865,437,493 583,364,413 690,394,610 432,542,485
31 487,960,028 51,582,280 487,960,028 351,562,280

32 87B5 - 876,526 -
33 153,085,659 80,202,439 125,701,932 80,158,470
46 1,3449131, 1,009,565,667 1,344,454,913 1,009,565,667
34 269,653,376 714,175,020 269,018,816 683,073,422
8,328,148,896 7,372,021,305  7,170,825,288 6,541,198,36
2,685,780,132 2,656,546,498  2,300,287,106 2,317,012,14
9,328,000 8,688,000 8,692,000 8,352,000
1,341,235,702 1,137,289,499 1,215,792,339 1,025,994,19
364,875,817 308,631,311 353,047,358 299,325,941
923,629,654 789,709,392 655,041,795 602,211,459
5,324,849,305  4,900,864,700  4,532,860,598  4,252,985,73
35 12389085 1,076,989,812 1,137,656,013 942,282,551
1,614,084,506 1,394,166,793 1,500,308,677 1,345,980,07

36 (78,422,223) (51,149,199) - -
1,535,662,283 1,343,017,594 1,500,308,677 1,345,9680,07

37 54,148,490 (17,911,617) - -
1,589,810,773 1,325,105,977 1,500,308,677 1,345,980,07




CIMB Thai Bank Public Company Limited
Statements of comprehensive incom€ont'd)
For the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011

Other comprehensive income

Changes in revaluation surplus

Gains (losses) on remeasuring
available-for-sale investments

Total other comprehensive income
from continuing operation

Other comprehensive income (expenses) on assets
of disposal group which was sold during the year

Total other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Net profit attributable to:

Shareholders of the Bank
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Shareholders of the Bank
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share for profit attributable
to the shareholders of the Bank

Basic earnings per share (Baht per share)

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares (shares)

The accompanying notes to consolidated and sefarateial statements from page 11 to 95 are agial part of the financial statements

Consolidated The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
Note Baht Baht Baht Baht
(54,830,081) 643,172,051 (54,830,081) 643,172,051
83,714,939 (18,714,346) 83,714,939 (18,714,346)
28,884,858 624,457,705 28,884,858 624,457,705
563,399 (5,175,540) - -
29,448,257 619,282,165 28,884,858 624,457,705
1,619,259,030 1,944,388,142 1,529,193,535 1,970,447,78
1,580,937,081 1,316,386,007 1,500,308,677 1,345,980,07
8,873,692 8,719,970 - -
1,589,810,773 1,325,105,977 1,500,308,677 1,345,960,07
1,610,385,338 1,935,668,172 1,529,193,535 1,970,447,78
8,873,692 8,719,970 - -
1,619,259,030 1,944,388,142 1,529,193,535 1,970,447,78
39
0.09 0.08 0.08 0.08
18,231,330,003 16,315,934,756 18,231,330,003 16,345,986




CIMB Thai Bank Public Company Limited
Statements of changes in shareholders’ equity
For the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011

Consolidated

Attributable to owners of the Bank

Other reserves

Other comprehensive

Revaluation income (expenses)
surplus on assets of Total equity
Issued and Revaluation (deficit) on disposal group Accretin of attributable to Non-
paid-up Share surplus on change in value classified as Total equity interests Legal Retained owners of controlling
share capital premium assets of investments Other held forates other reserves in subsidiary reserve earnings the bank interest Total
Note Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Bah Baht

Balance as at 1 January 2012 8,157,967,378 1,483,266,796 1,209,780,927 122,305,286 877,610 12597,8 1,347,561,648 - 129,500,000 2,203,340,511 13,321,636,333 89,286,3313,410,922,670
Total comprehensive income (expenses)

for the year - - (54,830,081) 83,714,939 - 563,399 29,448,257 1,580,937,081 ,388,838 8,873,692 1,619,259,030
Appropriated - statutory reserve - - - - - - - - 58,000,000 (58,000,000) - - -
Share-based payment - - - - 967,896 - 967,896 - - - 967,896 - 967,896
Increase in ordinary shares 22 2,384,471,635 2,384,471,634 - - - - - - 4,768,943,269 10,027,260 4,778,970,529
Dividend paid - - - - - - - - - - - (11,174,440) (11,174,440)
Sold investment in a subsidiary - - - - - (15,161,224) (15,161,224) - - - (15,161,224) - (15,161,224)
Others - - - - - - - - - (375,948) (375,948) - (375,948)
Changes in equity interests in subsidiary - - - - - - (42,75B,75 - - (42,753,751) (97,012,849) (139,766,600)
Transfer to retained earnings - - - - - - - - - 54,830,081 54,830,081 - 54,830,081
Balance as at 31 December 2012 10,542,439,013 3,867,738,430 1,154,950,846 206,020,225 1,845,506 - 2,818677 (42,753,751) 187,500,000 3,780,731,725 19,698,471,994 - 9816,994
Balance as at 1 January 2011 8,157,967,378 1,483,266,796 566,608,876 141,019,632 - 19,773,365 0r373 - 63,500,000 1,421,426,993 11,853,563,040 82,270,655 11,989833
Impact of the adoption of

TAS 19 employee benefits - - - - - - - - - (474,399,953) (474,399,953) (1,658,343) (476,058,296)

Restated balance 8,157,967,378 1,483,266,796 566,608,876 141,019,632 - 19,773,365 0r373 - 63,500,000 947,027,040 11,379,163,087 80,612,312 11,459975,3
Total comprehensive income (expenses)

for the year - - 643,172,051 (18,714,346) - (5,175,540) 619,282,165 1,316,3B6,00 1,935,668,172 8,719,970 1,944,388,142
Appropriated - statutory reserve - - - - - - - - 66,000,000 (66,000,000) - - -
Share-based payment - - - - 877,610 - 877,610 - - - 877,610 - 877,610
Non-controlling interest - - - - - - - - - - - (45,945) (45,945)
Transfer to retained earnings - - - - - - - - - 5,927,464 5,927,464 - 5,927,464
Balance as at 31 December 2011 8,157,967,378 1,483,266,796 1,209,780,927 122,305,286 877,610 12597,8 1,347,561,648 - 129,500,000 2,203,340,511 13,321,636,333 89,286,331.3,410,922,670

The accompanying notes to consolidated and sepfarateial statements from page 11 to 95 are ayial part of the financial statements




CIMB Thai Bank Public Company Limited
Statements of changes in shareholders’ equifCont'd)
For the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011

Balance as at 1 January 2012

Total comprehensive income (expenses) for the year
Appropriated - statutory reserve

Share-based payment

Increase in ordinary shares

Others

Transfer to retained earnings

Balance as at 31 December 20

Balance as at 1 January 2011
Impact of the adoption of
TAS 19 employee benefits

Restated balance

Total comprehensive income (expenses)
for the year

Appropriated - statutory reserve

Share-based payment

Transfer to retained earnings

Balance as at 31 December 20

The Bank
Other reserves
Revaluation
surplus
Issued and Revaluation (deficit) on
paid-up Share surplus on change in value Total Legal Retaed
share capital premium assets  of investments Other otheeserves reserve earnings Total
Note Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht
8,157,967,378 1,483,266,796  1,209,780,927 122,305,286 77,680 1,332,963,823 129,500,000 2,131,575,421 13,23328
- - (54,830,081) 83,714,939 - 28,884,858 - 1,500,308,677 529,193,535
- - - - - - 58,000,000 (58,000,000) -
- - - - 967,896 967,896 - - 967,896
22 2,384,471,635 2,384,471,634 - - - - - 4,768,943,269
- - - - - - - (375,948) (375,948)
- - - - - - - 54,830,081 54,830,081
10,542,439,01 3,867,738,43 _ 1,154,950,84 206,020,22 1,84550 _ 1,362,816,57 187,500,00 3,628,338,23 _19,588,832,2F
8,157,967,378 1,483,266,796 566,608,876 141,019,632 - 7,628,508 63,500,000 1,281,862,196 11,694,224,878
- - - - - - - (436,174,318)  (436,174,318)
8,157,967,378 1,483,266,796 566,608,876 141,019,632 - 7,628,508 63,500,000 845,687,878 11,258,050,560
- - 643,172,051 (18,714,346) - 624,457,705 - 1,345,960,079,970,417,784
- - - - - - 66,000,000 (66,000,000) -
- - - - 877,610 877,610 - - 877,610
- - - - - - - 5,927,464 5,927,464

8,157,967,37 1,483,266,78 _ 1,209,780,92

The accompanying notes to consolidated and sedaratecial statements from page 11 to 95 are agnat part of the financial statements

122,305,28 877,61( _ 1,332963,82 129,500,00 213157542 13,235,273 /41




CIMB Thai Bank Public Company Limited
Statements of cash flow
For the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011

Consolidated The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
Baht Baht Baht Baht

Note
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before corporate income tax from continuaperations
Profit (loss) before corporate income tax from
discontinued operations 37

Profit before corporate income tax
including discontinued operations

Adjustments to reconcile net income before incoaxe t
to cash in (out) flows from operating activities
Depreciation and amortisation
Bad debts and doubtful accounts
Reversal of provision for off-balance sheet sem
Share-based payment
Provision for employee benefits
Losses on impairment of properties for sale
Impairment losses on investments
Gain sharing from the management of the noneperihg loans

by Thai Asset Management Corporation
Unrealised (gains) losses on exchange
and derivatives

Realised (gains) losses of exchange rate oroargs
Losses (gains) on properties for sale
Unrealised (gains) losses on revaluation of stments
Gains on sale of investments
Gains on disposal of premises and equipment
Losses from write off premises and equipment
Gains on surplus from of revaluation of assets
Impairment of premises and equipment
Gains on financial liabilities designated at failue through profit or loss
Interest and dividend income
Interest expenses

Losses from operations
before changes in operating
assets and liabilities
(Increase) decrease in operating assets
Interbank and money market items
Investments held for trading
Loans
Properties for sale
Other assets

Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities
Deposits
Interbank and money market items
Liability payable on demand
Short-term borrowings
Provisions
Other liabilities

Cash flows (used in) provided by operating activigs
Cash received from interest income
Cash paid for interest expenses
Net cash paid for income tax

Net cash flows (used in) provided by operating aatities

1,614,084,506

54,148,490

1,394,166,793

(17,911,617)

1,500,308,677 3451960,079

1,668,232,996

538,242,670
1,401,239,204
(22,348,819)
967,896
118,348,000
15,346,473
1,081,752

(1,344,454,913)

(153,673,494)
(37,648,000)
185,325,840

(8,991,029)

(224,250,866)

(10,980,604)
7,968,009

(12,947,014)

(10,285,041,125)
4,332,373,659

1,376,255,176

411,878,809
1,074,685,731
(15,012,991)
877,610
123,448,983
2,392,065
11,100,950

(1,009,565,667)

160,835,044
11,350,000
207,341,408
2,633,326
(177,905,133)
(79,946,078)
3,307,740
(98,482,551)
5
(7,287,450,589)
3,069,771,369

1,500,308,677

502,120,624
1,149,680,132
(22,348,819)

967,896
108,556,204

1,081,752

(1,344,454,913)

(153,673,494)
(37,648,000)
(6,743,207)
(8,963,088)
(152,012,021)
(9,488,057)
7,968,001

(12,917)
(9,322,150,894)
4,290,280,306

1,345,960,07

377,607,062
942,282,551
(4,012,991)

877,610

101,547,171

11,144,919

(1EEE667)

160,835,044
11,350,000
76,531,814

2,742,945
(105,836,681)
(80,610,006)
3,307,740
(98,482,551)
5
@E35,390)
3,051,794,53

(3,831,209,365)

(5,832,814,394)
(1,028,926,993)
(23,123,489,021)
576,407,245
(223,824,872)

34,077,402,623
6,513,683,956
201,328,153
(15,693,777,588)
(136,870,821)
820,173,128

(2,212,484,793)

10,040,371,933
(1,958,806,791)
(26,003,465,408)
816,006,438
341,776,656

6,910,336,650
1,175,266,666
(106,533,315)
16,100,335,142
(74,976,995)
(762,917,426)

(3,509,465,915)

(5,545,325,706)
(1,065,166,892)

(21,119,329,582)
116,311,057
(106,936,568)

33,993,378,250

5,800,666,710
201,328,153

(15,693,777,588)
(134,056,604)
216,948,965

(2B86806)

102286577
(240E31946)
,7651868,050)

435,904,985

258,600,565

6,743820,
1,132,683,58
(106,533,315)
T63B5,142

(74,976,995)
(762,551,740)

(7,681,917,949)
8,845,212,196
(4,414,181,572)
(75,537,258)

4,264,908,757

6,300,737,404
(2,661,235,618)
(54,441,695)

(6,845,425,720)
7,845,520,878
(4,374,900,719)

4,336968
6,638,388,88
(28B887)

(3,326,424,583)

7,849,968,848

(3,374,805,561)

8,326965

The accompanying notes to consolidated and seffarateeial statements from page 11 to 95 are aygnat part of the financial statements




CIMB Thai Bank Public Company Limited
Statements of cash flowCont'd)
For the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011

Cash flows from investing activities

Cash paid for purchases of available-for-sale sgesir
Proceeds from disposals of available-for-sale seesir
Proceeds from maturity of available-for-sale sdmsi
Cash paid for purchases of held to maturity seesrit
Proceeds from maturity of held to maturity secesiti
Cash paid for increase in ordinary shares in sidrsd
Proceeds from disposals of investment in subsgBari
Proceeds from repayment of investment in receivable
Proceeds from disposals of general investments
Proceeds from decrease in capital of general imessts
Cash paid for purchases of premises and equipment
Proceeds from disposals of premises and equipment
Cash paid for purchases of intangible assets
Proceeds from disposals of intangible assets
Dividend received

Interest received

Net cash flows used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issuing subordinate debentures

Cash paid for redemption of subordinated debentures

Dividend paid

Proceeds from issuance of structured bills of exgbaand debentures
Cash received from capital increase

Net cash flows provided by financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Supplemental disclosure of cash flows information

Non-cash transaction:
Properties for sales received in settlemenebtsl
Properties for sales received in premises angpetent
Changes in revaluation surplus in availablesale
Write-off loans and allowance for doubtful debts
Adjustment of brought forward retained earnidgs to the
adoption of TAS 19 Employee Benefits
Receivable from disposal of properties for sale
Transfer investments in receivable to loanstdwiebt restructuring-net
Revaluation surplus on assets
Statutory reserve
Write-off other liabilites from sales of investnt in a subsidiary
Payable from purchase of intangible assets
Customers'’ liability under acceptance
Interest amortisation from premium or discount

Consolidated The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
Baht Baht Baht Baht

(15,567,499,365)

11,965,926,585
278,000,000
(9,116,832,910)

(5,475,305,948)
980,224
2,620,000,000
(13,893,398,632)

(15,567,499,365(5,475,305,948)

11,965,926,585
278,000,000

342,458
2,620,000,00

(9,116,832,910)3,8613,398,632)

5539,930,576  7,359,469,428  5,539,930,576  7,35%2809,
(139,766,600) - (169,783,267)  (600,000,000)
1,117,600,000 31,579,041  1,117,600,000 31,579,041
340,304,845 132,613,599 340,304,845 132,613,599
16,868,875 50,799,105 16,868,875 50,799,105
41,525,891 34,980,000 41,525,891 34,980,000
95,424,987)  (648,554,133)  (255,286,146)  (545,864,299)
918528 192,259,890 34,841,137 192,488,450
(81,546,543)  (117,429,333) (75,450,886) (96,177,570)
- 15,812 - 15,812
116,881,772 199,177,398 150,347,332 198,223,938
1,000,791,553 544,920,895  1,000,791,553 544,920,895
(4,745,345,680)  (8,967,892,654)  (4,698,715,780) (93W%723)
3,000,000,000  3,000,000,000  3,000,000,000  3,000,000,00
(1,230,000,000)  (1,503,750,000)  (1,230,000,000)  (1ZEE000)
(11,174,440) - - -
1,544,075,280 - 1,544,075,280 -
4,778,970,529 - 4,768,943,269 -
8,081,871,369  1,496,250,000  8,083,018,549  1,496,260,00
10,101,106 378,326,194 9,497,208 377,626,242
122B46,554  2744,520,360  3,120,642,155  2,743,015,913
3,132,947,660  3,122,846,554  3,130,139,363  3,120,682,15
875,602,530 524,668,561 176,999,322 3,933,000
- - 18,140,691 -
84,278,338 23,891,863 83,714,939 18,714,346
719,242,779 652,242,240 562,431,150 589,755,756
- 476,058,295 - 436,174,318
18,763,318 54,640,254 18,763,318 54,640,254
- 125,092,869 - 125,092,869
54,454,133 649,099,515 54,454,133 649,099,515
58,000,000 66,000,000 58,000,000 66,000,000
- 58,400,000 - 58,400,000
17,257,811 2,462,827 17,257,811 2,462,827
34,175,285 8,448,609 34,175,285 8,448,609
278,924 26,242,284 78,277,924 26,242,284

The accompanying notes to consolidated and seffaratecial statements from page 11 to 95 are aygiat part of the financial statements
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CIMB Thai Bank Public Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements
For the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011
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CIMB Thai Bank Public Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements
For the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011

1 General information

CIMB Thai Bank Public Company Limited (“the Bank®§ a public limited company whidk listed on the Stock
Exchangeof Thailand and is incorporated and domiciled in Tdad. The Bank has operated as a commercial
bank in Thailand since 8 March 1949. Tdddres®f the Bank’sregisteredffice is asfollows:

44 Langsuan Road, Lumpini, Patumwan, Bangkok

The Bank is listed on the Stock Exchange of Thdildfor reporting purposes, the Baakd its subsidiaries are
referred to as the Group. Its parent company is EEB&nk Berhad, which is a public company incorpedain
Malaysia. CIMB Group Holdings Berhad is the pammnpany of the CIMB Group.

All subsidiaries were incorporated as limited conmipa under Thai laws, and all operate in Thailamaging
mainly in securities business (until 2 July 2012btdcollection, hire purchase and leasing busises3ée Bank
and all subsidiaries are collectively called “theo@".

The consolidated and bank financial statements aett@orised by the Board of Directors on 27 Felyr@28x 3.

2 Accounting Policies

2.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated and bankrfancial statements

The consolidated and bank financial statementse(‘financial statements”) have been prepared in
accordance with Thai Generally Accepted Accountifrinciples under the Accounting Act B.E. 2543,
being those Thai Financial Reporting Standardseidaunder the Accounting Profession Act B.E. 254id, a
the financial reporting requirements of the Se@sitand Exchange Commission under the Securitids an
Exchange Act. The primary financial statements.,(istatements of financial position, statements of
comprehensive income, changes in shareholder egoiycash flow) have been prepared in the format as
required by the Natification of the Bank of Thaith(BoT) no. SorNorSor 11/2553, “The Preparation and
Format of the Financial Statements of CommercialkBand Holding Parent Company of Financial Group”
dated 3 December 2010.

The consolidated and bank financial statements baes prepared under the historical cost convention
except as disclosed in the accounting policiesvhelo

The preparation of financial statements in confoyrmith the GAAP requires the use of certain catic
accounting estimates. It also requires manageneeekércise judgement in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involvingigher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significathdgoconsolidated and bank financial statements, are
disclosed in note t the financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared budimg the financial statements of CIMB Thai Bank
Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries. Thmvricial statements for the year ended 31 December
2012 have been prepared with some changes relatetibtsidiaries during the year. Such change is
disclosed in Notes 8.7 and 37 to the financiakstents.

The Bank has prepared the financial statementth®benefit of the public, which presents its irent
in subsidiaries under the cost method.

An English-language version of the financial stataete has been prepared from the statutory financial
statements that are in Thai-language version. hénevent of a conflict or a difference in interptin
between the two languages, the Thai language fiabstatements shall prevail.
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CIMB Thai Bank Public Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements
For the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011

2

Accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in theparation of these financial statements are sebeloiv:

2.2

New accounting standards, new financial reporig standards, new interpretation and amendments to
accounting standards

a)

New accounting standards, new financial reportig standards, new interpretation and amendments to
accounting standards

The new accounting standards, amendments to adogutandards, new financial reporting standard,
interpretations that are effective on or after huday 2013 and have not been early adopted by the
Group:

Effective for the periods beginning on or afterahdary 2013

TAS 12 Income taxes

TAS 20 Accounting for Government Grants and Disate of Government
Assistance

TAS 21 (Revised 2009) The Effects of Changes ireigor Exchange Rates

TFRS 8 Operating Segments

TSIC 10 Government Assistance - No Specific RefatdOperating Activities

TSIC 21 Income Taxes - Recovery of Revalued NonrBapble Assets

TSIC 25 Income Taxes - Changes in the Tax Statas d&ntity or its

Shareholders

Management has assessed that TAS 20 and TSIClQoarelevant to the business of the Group.
For other accounting standards, management aréeinptocess of evaluating the effect of such
standards to the financial statements for the yetially applied. New accounting standards which
may significantly impact the financial statements shown as follows.

TAS 12 dealsonly with taxeson income,comprisingcurrentanddeferredtax. Currenttax expensdor
a periodis basedon the taxableand deductibleamountsthat will be shownon the tax returnfor the
currentyear. Currenttax assetsand liabilities for the currentand prior periodsare measuredat the
amountexpectedo be paidto (recoveredrom) the taxationauthorities usingthe tax ratesandtax laws
thathavebeenenactedr substantivelyenacteddy the statemenbf financial positiondate.Deferredtax
accountingis basedon the temporarydifferencesbetweenthe tax baseof an assetor liability andits
carryingamountin thefinancial statements.

TFRS8 requiresa ‘managemenapproach’ underwhich segmentnformationis presenteen the same
basisasthat usedfor internal reportingpurposesThe Groupwill apply this standardrom 1 January
2013. The expectedmpactis still beingassesseih detailby managementutit appeardikely thatthe

numberof reportablesegmentsaswell asthe mannerin which the segmentarereportedwill change
in awaythatis consistentvith theinternalreportingprovidedto the chief operatingdecision-maker.

Effectivefor the periodsbeginningon or after 1 January2014

TFRIC 4 Determiningwhetheran Arrangementontainsa Lease
TFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements

TFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes

TSIC 29 Service Concession Arrangements: Disclosure

Management has assessed that the above TFRIC dfdars not relevant to the business of the
Group.
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CIMB Thai Bank Public Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements
For the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011

2 Accounting policies(cont’d)

2.3 Revenue recognition

(€Y

(b)

(©

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

Interest and discount on loans

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basise Bank discontinues recognition of overdue
accrued interest income more than three months dime due date unless there is uncertainty of
collectability, and a collection basis is appliethe Bank also reverses interest income on sugatsloa
in order to comply with the Bank of Thailand’s rimi@tion. The Bank continues its income
recognition on the accrual basis when the entirewarhof the principal and overdue interest has
been paid.

The Bank recognises interest income on restructloads on the same accrual basis as used for
loans discussed above, with the exception of |tlaaisare subject to monitoring for compliance with
restructuring conditions, on which the Bank recsgniinterest income on a cash basis until the
borrower has been able to comply with the restmireuconditions for a period of not less than three
consecutive months or three consecutive installsevtiichever is longer.

Interest on margin loans

Interest on margin loans is recognised as income dime-proportion basis except for interest
income from certain securities business receivablddch is recognised on a collection basis in
accordance with an announcement of the SecuritidsExchange Commission, dated 15 February
2001, regarding accounting for sub-standard Ioans

Interest and dividends on investments

Interest income from investments is recognised tma-proportion basis using the effective interest
method. Dividend income from investments is re¢egm when the right-to-receive payment is
established.

Interest income from investments in receivablegt®gnised using the effective interest method for
receivables from which loan repayment was recetlating the period. The effective interest rate
was determined on assumptions as to the amounthentiming of future collections on such loans.
Such assumptions concern events that have notakentplace and accordingly may vary if
unforeseen circumstances arise.

Gains (losses) on sale of investments

Gains(losse$ on sale of investments are recognised as ing@xpenses on the transaction date
Gains (losses) on sale of properties for sale

Gains or losses on sale of properties are recafjrése income or expenses in statements of
comprehensive income when the significant risks awiards of ownership of properties for sale
have been transferred to the buyer.

Brokerage fees

Brokerage income is recognised when the underlyenrgsaction is contracted.

Income from hire-purchase contracts

The subsidiaries calculate hire-purchase incomegutiie effective interest rate method over the
period of contracts.

The subsidiaries recognise hire-purchase incontieeosame basis used for interest income on loans.
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CIMB Thai Bank Public Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements
For the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011

2 Accounting policies(cont’d)

2.3 Revenue recognitiorfcont’d)
(h)  Other income

Other income is recognised as income on an acbass.

2.4  Expense recognition
(&) Interest expenses
Interests on borrowings and deposits are recogmiseckpenses on an accrual basis.
(b)  Commission fee under hire-purchase agreements

The commission fee under hire-purchase agreemenesdgnised over the installment periosing
the effective rate method.

(c) Other expense

Other expense is recognised as expense on an blicasis

2.5 Investments

The Group classifies investments, other than imvests in subsidiaries, associates and joint vesitimeo

4 categories: 1. Trading investments; 2. Held-todnity investments; 3. Available-for-sale investrigerand

4. General investments. The classification is ddpehon the purpose for which the investments were
acquired. Management determines the appropriasifdation of its investments at the time of thiechase and
re-evaluates such designation on a regular basis.

(1) Trading investments are investments that ageieed principally for the purpose of generatingrafit
from short-term fluctuations in price not more tf@amonths. Trading investments are traded in active
markets and included in short-term investment.

(2) Available-for-sale investments are investmantended to be held for an indefinite period ofdim
which may be sold in response to liquidity needshanges in interest rates, and are included ig-lon
term investment unless management has expressedehton of holding the investment for less than
12 months from the statements of financial positate, in which case they are included in shortxter
investment.

(3) Held-to-maturity investments are investmenttixed maturity that the management has the inten
and ability to hold to maturity, and are classifiad held-to-maturity and included in long-term
investment, except for maturities within 12 monrfiieen the statement of financial position date which
are classified as short-term investment.

(4) General investments are investments in non-gtabke equity securities.

Purchases and sales of investments are recognisetieosettlement date€Cost of investment includes
transaction costs. Trading and available-for-galestments are subsequently carried at fair value.
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CIMB Thai Bank Public Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements
For the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011

2

Accounting policies(cont’d)

2.5

2.6

Investments(cont’d)

Available-for-sale investments are presented irsthgement of financial position at fair value lafliewance
for impairment, if any. In the statements of conmaresive income, the unrealised gains and losseadihg
investments are recognised in the gaflosses) on investment. Unrealised gain and loasissg from
changes in the fair value of investments classifisdavailable-for-sale are recognised in equity.elivh
available-for-sale investments are sold or impaitieel accumulated fair value adjustments are iseiud the
statements of comprehensive income as g@osses) on investment. Fair values are calculatedhe
following basis:

- For marketable debt securities, fair values aleutated by referencing the last bid prices on &t
business day of the period. The rates are anndumcéhe Thai Bond Market Association (Thai BMA).
Fair values of other debt securities are calculatedeferencing the risk-free yield curve, adjusbgathe
appropriate risk premium.

- For marketable equity securities, fair valuesaaleulated by referencing the last bid prices gdain the
Stock Exchange of Thailand on the last busines®fitheperiod.

Held-to-maturity investments are carried at amedisost using the effective yield method.
General investments are carried at cost less impgair.

The Group tests for impairment when there is afadadicating that an investment might be impairéidthe
carrying value of the investment is higher thanrésoverable amount, impairment loss is chargeth¢o
statement of comprehensive income.

On disposal of an investment, the difference betwibe net disposal proceeds and the carrying anisunt
charged to the statements of comprehensive incivien disposing of part of the Group’s holding of a
particular investment in debt or equity securittes, carrying amount of the disposed part is datedby the
weighted average carrying amount of the total Ingjdif the investment

Investments in receivables

Investments in receivables purchased from finariostitutions are valued at acquisition cost netoy
allowance for impairment, if any. Loss on impairmef investments is included in statements of
comprehensive income.

Investments in receivables which enter into trodbebt restructuring are transferred to loans and
presented at fair value net of any allowance farbdiful debt. The fair value is based on the outlitag
balance of investments in receivables purchased taansferred date or as at the date of restriagtur

The Group determines allowance for impairment eEgtments in receivables based on the present value
of expected future cash flows from collateral disgdoor debt collection in accordance with the Baffik
Thailand’s provisioning guidelines.
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CIMB Thai Bank Public Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements
For the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011

2 Accounting policies(cont’d)

2.7  Promissory notes received in connection with trasfer of non-performing loans to TAMC

Promissory notes received in connection with thengfer of non-performing loans to Thai Asset
Management Corporation (“TAMC"), which are avaleg the Financial Institutions Development Fund
(“FIDF™), are regarded as investments in debt séesrexpected to be held to maturity and therestated

at cost. The Bank recognises interest income enpttomissory notes on an accrual basis using the
weighted average interest rate announced by 5 cocrehéanks for the previous quarter. The Bank will
recognise income or expenses with respect to gdimse sharing from the management of non-perfogmin
loans at the end of the agreement, and when thk B&eives allocation from TAMC, or when the gam o
loss can be accurately estimated.

2.8 Investments in subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Baak the power to govern the financial and operatmigies
generally accompanying a shareholding of more tmenhalf of the voting rights. When assessing véretie
Bank controls another entity, the Bank considees gkistence and effect of voting rights that argerly
exercisable or convertible, including potentialingtright which held by other entities. The Banksolidated
financial statement of subsidiaries from the datembich control is transferred to the Bank andrardonger
consolidated from the date that control ceases.

The Bank applies the purchase method of accoutdiagcount for the acquisition of subsidiaries. Thst of
an acquisition is measured as the fair value ofabmets given, equity instruments issued and itiabil
incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, plsis dlirectly attributable to the acquisition. Itiféable
assets acquired, liabilities and contingent litibdi assumed in a business combination are meassiitiatly
at their fair values at the acquisition date, pesgive of the extent of any non-controlling inttre

The excess cost of acquisition over the fair vaiithe Bank’s share of the identifiable net asaetwiired is
recorded as goodwill.

If the cost of acquisition is less than the failugaof the net assets of the subsidiary acquiteddifference is
recognised directly in the statements of compreferiscome.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unreaiiaigd or losses on transactions between group cuempa
are eliminated. Where necessary, accounting pslafiiesubsidiaries have been changed to ensurestemsy
with the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Bank’s financial statements, investmentsuibsidiaries are reported using the cost method

A list of the Bank’s principal subsidiaries and tfieancial effects of acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries are shown in Note 8.7 to the finarstatements.
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CIMB Thai Bank Public Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements
For the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011

2 Accounting policies(Cont'd)

29 Loangsecurities-business receivables/hire-purchase regables and allowance for doubtful accounts

(@)

(b)

(©)

For loans of commercial banking business

Loans are generally stated at the principal amoauistanding. The allowance for doubtful accousts i
provided for risks of losses incurred on loans. BlHewance is increased by provisions charged to
expense or recoveries and decreased by writeTdfésallowance is based on the management’s review
and assessment of the status of individual debsvgell as BoT guidelines. In addition, the Baakes

into consideration the relationship of risks invaady value of collateral and the status of individlgbtors
including the relationship of allowance for doubtfiebts against the loan balance through economic
situations which may have an impact on customéibfyeto pay.

For securities business receivables

Receivables from clearing house and payables &rinkghouse

Receivables from clearing houses comprise the médnbe of receivables from the Thailand
Securities Depository (“TSD”) in respect of sedesttrades settled through the TSD clearing house
and the net receivables from Thailand Clearing tdo{f$ CH") including amounts pledged with
TCH as security for derivatives trading.

Payables to clearing houses comprise the net lealgagable to TSD in relation to securities trades
settled through the TSD clearing house and the@aable to TCH.

As at 15 February 2010 and onward, receivables inthpayables to TSD clearing house in relation
to securities trades will be settled through TCH.

Securities business receivables and allowancedaitful accounts

Securities business receivables and derivativenbasi receivables are the net balances after
deducting allowance for doubtful accounts and idelinterest receivables.

Securities business receivables comprise cash at;omargin accounts, guarantee deposits
receivable, as well as other receivables such asdoe cash accounts receivables - the subject of
legal proceedings - which are undergoing restrimguor are being settled in installments.

Allowance for doubtful accounts is determined basedSecurities and Exchange Commission’s
notification dated 15 February 2001, regarding anting for sub-standard loans. The announcement
requires the subsidiary categorise its loan paotfioito three categories subject to different minm
levels of provisioning. The announcement also isgsopolicies regarding collateral valuation for
the purpose of setting allowance for doubtful acteu Moreover, management also considers the
financial position of each debtor based on manag&€mexperience and opinion.

For hire-purchase receivables

Hire-purchase receivables are stated at net rbddiszalue from the contractual amounts net of
unearned hire-purchase income.

Allowance for doubtful accounts is set in accordanith the Bank of Thailand’s guidelines.
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CIMB Thai Bank Public Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements
For the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011

2

Accounting policies(cont’d)

2.10

211

212

Troubled debt restructuring and associated losses

The Group records troubled debt restructuring tatisns and related losses according to the natifios
of the Bank of Thailand.

The Bank records assets received in settlemengttsdat the lower of the fair values of the asdess, any
estimated selling expenses, or the amount of imests in receivables (including accrued interesbine).

In the case the debt restructuring involves modiftm of terms of receivables, the fair value of
investments in receivables after restructuringasda on the net present value of the expectedefutash
flows, discounted by the Minimum Loan Rate (“MLRS) Customer Loan Rate (“CLR") prevailing at the
restructuring date.

Losses arising from restructuring, loss allowanoe doubtful accounts, are recorded as revaluation
allowance for debt restructuring and recognisedgense in the statements of comprehensive income
when incurred.

Legal fees and other direct costs incurred to effeedebt restructuring are expensed when incurred

The Bank adjusts the revaluation allowance for defitucturing at the end of every period by rewdating the
net present value of expected cash flows, discduoyethe MLR or CLR being quoted to the debtorhat t
end of the year.

Losses arising from debt restructuring through eminf part of the principal or recorded accrue@riest
receivable after deduction the provided allowaniéeafy) will be charged against the statements of
comprehensive income when the debt restructuringesmgent is executed.

Properties for sale

Properties for sale consisting of immovable and abte assets are stated at the lower of cost or net
realisable value less estimated selling expens#iseohcquisition assets. Where the carrying vafuer-

sale assets incurred impairment, the Group wilbgeése the provision for impairment of for-saleedssn
total.

The Group will recognise gain (loss) on sales ofsile assets as income or expenses in the whaleraim
accordance with the notifications of the Bank o&ildnd.

Premises, equipment and depreciation

Land and buildings comprise mainly offices andsdrewn at fair value based on evaluations everyabsyiey
external independent valuers, less subsequentdiajwa for buildings. All other equipment is sthiat cost
less accumulated depreciation.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s ngraynount or recognised as a separate asset, @pagie,
only when it is probable that future economic begsefssociated with the item will flow to the Groapd the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. Theyoagramount of the replaced part is derecgonisdd. A
other repairs and maintenance are charged to mmofibss during the financial period in which thaese
incurred.

The Group records increases in the carrying amanigihg on the revaluation of property and plafiege are
credited to other comprehensive income and shoemetaluation surplus on assets (included in uisezl
gain) in shareholders’ equity. Decreases that Dffsevious increases of the same asset are chaggedst
that reserve; all other decreases are chargedetstdtement of comprehensive income. Each peried th
difference between depreciation based on the redatarrying amount of the asset (the depreciatianged

to the statements of comprehensive income) aneéclafion based on the asset’s original cost isfieared from
revaluation reserve to retained earnings.
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CIMB Thai Bank Public Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements
For the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011

2

Accounting policies(cont’d)

212

2.13

Premises and equipment and depreciatioftont’d)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-lineidbaswrite off the cost or the revalued amount ofreasset,
except for land, which is considered to have awefinde life, to its residual value over the estiethuseful
life as follows:

Buildings 20 - 40 years
Equipment 5 years and 10 years

At the end of each reporting period, tmsetsresidualvaluesandusefullives arereviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate.

Where the carrying amount of an asset is greatar iis estimated recoverable amount, it is writlewn
immediately to its recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined byazorg proceeds with carrying amount and are ireduid
operating profit.

On disposal of revalued assets, the related re@iuaserve amounts are transferred to retainedness.

Intangible assets
(@ Computer software

Acquired computer software licences are capitalsedhe basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the specific software. These costaarertised over their estimated useful lives oh8 a
10 years.

Costs associated with developing or maintaining putter software programmes are recognised as
expenses as incurred. Costs that are directly iassdaovith identifiable and unique software product
controlled by the Group, and will likely generatmeromic benefits exceeding costs beyond one year,
are recognised as intangible assets. Direct cosligdie staff costs of the software development team
and an appropriate portion of relevant overhead.

Expenditures which enhance or extend the perforenanmputer software programmes beyond their
original specifications are recognised as capitglrovement and added to the original cost of the
software. Computer software development costseregnised as assets and are amortised using the
straight-line basis over their useful lives.

(b)  Other intangible assets

Expenditures on acquired licences are capitaliseidaanortised using the straight-line basis overr the
useful lives, generally over 5 years. Intangibleets are not revalued.

20
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For the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011

2

Accounting policies(cont’d)

2.14

2.15

2.16

2.17

Impairment of assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, forragée goodwill, are not subject to amortisation anel tested
annually for impairment. Assets that are subje@nmrtisation are reviewed for impairment whenexemts
or changes in circumstances indicate that the icgrgmount may not be recoverable. An impairmess is
recognised for the amount by which the carryingpamt of the assets exceeds its recoverable ambhaet.
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's/édire less costs to sell and value in use. Foptingoses of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at tlestidewel for which there are separately identiiatash
flows. Non-financial assets other than goodwitteuffered an impairment are reviewed for possiblersal
of the impairment at each reporting date.

Leasehold rights

The Bank amortises the cost of leasehold rightduildings, which are presented as other assetshéor
period of 2-30 years as an operating expense taighe-line method over the life of the agreement.

Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risiksd rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor
classified as operating leases. Payments made opeeating leases (net of any incentives receiveuh f
the lessor) are charged to the statement of corapsife income on a straight-line basis over théogesf
the lease.

Leases of property, plant or equipment where tlasde substantially has all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases. Finkases are capitalised at the inception of theeled the
lower of the fair value of the leased property malpresent value of the minimum lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the tiabifid finance charges so as to achieve a constiznon

the outstanding finance balance. The correspondiémgal obligations and net of finance charges are
included in other long-term payables. The intesdstnent of the finance cost is charged to profitoss
over the lease period so property, plant or equitraequired under finance leases is depreciatedthee
shorter period of the useful life of the asset tredlease term.

Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of theup are measured using Thai Baht. The consotldate
financial statements are presented in Thai Baht.

The Group translates foreign currency transactiotos Thai Baht using the exchange rates prevadinthe
date of the transaction. Monetary assets anditiabildenominated in foreign currency are trandlate Thai
Baht at the exchange rate prevailing at the stattsraf financial position date. Gains and lossasiltiag
from the settlement of foreign currency transadtiand from the translation of monetary assets iabdities
denominated in foreign currencies, are recogniséld statements of comprehensive income.
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2

Accounting policies(cont’d)

2.18

2.19

2.20

Financial derivatives
The Bank regards its obligations under financialvdgives contracts as off-statements of finanpiasition
items. The accounting treatments for financial \d#ives transactions depend on the purpose of the
transactions as follows:
(@) Trading transactions
The Bank records its obligations under financialwdgives contracts originated for trading purposes
at fair value. Gains/losses arising from changesloe are included in statements of comprehensive
income.

(b)  Hedging transactions

The Bank measures derivatives classified as hedgangactions on a basis equivalent to that used in
measurement of hedged underlying assets and tiabili

Derivatives for fair value hedges are initially ogaised at fair value. Changes in fair value are

recorded in statement of comprehensive income hegetith any changes in fair value of hedged
assets or liabilities that are attributable tohbedged risk.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilites at fair value through profit lmss are initially recognised at fair value artetognised
when extinguished.

Measurement is initially at fair value, premiumesed from fair value will be amortised as inconmgilu
maturity or at early termination. Changes in thie f@&lue of financial liabilities, designated airfaalue

through profit or loss, are recognised in the statgts of comprehensive income as gain or lossnamdiial
liabilities designated at fair value through praédiss.

Employee benefits and pension fund

Defined contribution plan

The Group operates a provident fund that is a ddficontribution plan, the assets of which are leld
separate trust fund managed by external fund managke provident fund is funded by payments from
employees and by the Group. Contributions to theigent fund are charged to the statements of ceingipisive
income in the year to which they relate.

Defined benefit plan

The Group has a policy to pay post-employment bengf employees under the labour law applicable in
Thailand.

According to TAS 19 Employee Benefits, the Group m@visions for a pension fund which comprises
post-employment benefits under the labour law apple in Thailand and pension fund.
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2

Accounting policies(cont’d)

2.20

2.21

222

2.23

Employee benefits and pension funftont'd)

Liability in respect of employee benefits is measliusing the projected unit-credit method, which is
calculated by an independent actuary in accordavitte actuarial techniques. The present value of the
defined benefits obligations is determined by distimg estimated future cash flows based on governtm
bond yields which have terms to maturity approxintathe terms of related liability. The estimatedufe

cash flows shall reflect employee salaries, turnoate, mortality, length of service and othersa Bmount

of net actuarial gains or losses recognised irstatement of comprehensive income is determinethéy
corridor approach in accordance with TAS19 andetsognised as income or expense over the expected
average remaining service lives of the related eyg#s participating in the defined benefit plan.

The Bank adjusted the consolidated and bank stateofefinancial position as at 1 January 2011 by
increasing provisions for employee benefits amagntio Baht 474 million and Baht 436 million, resipesly,
and reducing beginning retained earnings by theesamount.

Provisions

The Group recognises provisiom$ien the Group has a present legal or construotiligation as a
result of past events; it is probable that an outflof resources will be required to settle the
obligation; and the amount has been reliably edtoh

Where the Group expects a provision to be reimlolitbe reimbursement is recognised as a separsgg as
but only when the reimbursement is highly likely.

Where there are a number of similar obligationg likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the cldsbligations as a whole. A provision is recogdisven
if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to aope item included in the same class of obligatibay be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value ofxpenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects aurmaarket assessments of the time value of mondytlan
risks specific to the obligation. The increas¢hi@ provison due to passage of time is recogniseadtarest
expense.

Income tax

The Group calculates income tax based on the tayabfits determined in accordance with tax letimta

Share based payment

The Bank operates share-based compensation plaiak, mclude options and shares granted to empioyesr
entittements granted to employees under the ManageBquity Scheme (MES) before 1 January 2011 to
which TFRS 2 has not been applied, the Bank do¢sinotude them in the financial statements but
discloses them as the requirement of the standardte 26 to the financial statements.

In March 2011, the Bank established an Equity OslmiprPlan (EOP). At the grant date, the Bank rezord
prepayment for the whole amount with fair valueersfto market price on the same day of the ordinary
shares of CIMB Group Holding Berhad ,which is tlzegmt company of CIMB Group, and registers in the
stock market in Malaysia multiplies with the numibéishares granted to the employees. The Banktpaid
amount to the related company in Malaysia whicH pulrchase, own the shares until the transfer date
behalf of the Bank and other companies in the group

At the end of each reporting period, the Bank sgtspayment reserve as the proportion of time loé t
vesting period.

The Bank reverses prepayment againsts share basepireserve with the preset amount when theeelat
company in Malaysia transfers those ordinary shiaréise employees at the end of vesting period.
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3

Financial risk management

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety afafncial risks: market risk (including currency rig&ir
value interest rate risk, cash flow interest rak and price risk), credit risk and liquidity riskhe Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses on thwedittability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on its finangi@rformance. The Group uses derivative financial
instruments to hedge certain exposures.

Risk management is carried out under policies aggordoy the Board of Directors. The Group’s Treasury
identifies, evaluates and hedges financial riskslase co-operation with its operating units. TheaRl
provides written principles for overall risk managent, as well as written policies covering spediiieas,
such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate dekdlit risk, use of derivative and non-derivatiirgahcial
instruments, and investment excess liquidity.

3.1.1 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the Bank may suffesslas a result of changes in the value of positadten,
both on and off statements of financial positiome o movements in interest rates, foreign exchange
rates, equity prices and commaodity prices.

The Bank has a Market Risk Management Unit, whictesponsible for assessment of market risk, and
uses tools and systems that are widely accepteflicisnt to help measure, monitor and manage nharke
risk. This supports the Bank in ensuring that mianikk is monitored and managed effectively, préinen

the occurrence of unacceptable levels of markkt aisd enabling the Bank to take action to adjust
market risk to appropriate levels in a timely mamne

3.1.1.1 Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that changesomeign exchange rates may result in
changes in the value of financial instruments, flunctuations in revenues and the value of
financial assets and liabilities.

The Bank’s Treasury and Trading Division is respioiesfor managing foreign currency
positions within risk limits set by the Risk Managent Committee.

3.1.1.2 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in miaihkterest rates which may lead to changes
in the value of financial instruments, and fluctoas in revenue and the values which of
financial assets and liabilities.

Interest rate risk arises from interest rate stmecaind the characteristics and structure of the
Bank’s assets, liabilities and capitdhe Bank has set risk limits for interest rate tskler

the banking accounts, with consent from the Asaatk Liabilities Committee (ALCO), in
order to manage risk at an appropriate level, winterest rate risk limits for the trading
accounts are approved by the Risk Management Caeanit

3.1.1.3 Equity position risk
Equity position risk is the risk that changes ie tharket prices of equity securities may

result in changes in the value of investments, farduations in revenues and the value of
financial assets.
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3 Financial risk management(cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors(cont'd)

3.1.2

3.1.3

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the Bank will incul@ss because its customers, clients or counteiepart
failed to discharge their contractual obligations

The Bankcredit risk management processes implemented under a credit risk managementyoli
and have been structured in order to maintain chemkd balances and clear segregation of
responsibilities between the marketing, credit apal, inspection and risk management functions.
The Bank manages credit risk at the customer stamearisk level and the portfolio level,
developing different and appropriate credit risking tools to measure the risk at each level. For
corporate customet@nd small-medium enterprise customers, risk grathots and an SME rating,
respectively, have been developed to grade custaredit risk levels. For individual retail
customers, with multi-purpose credit, whether ulatetalised (personal cash) or collateralised
(mortgage power), including home loans, the Bark developed a credit scoring system for use in
risk evaluation.

In respect of the credit review and approval precé® Bank has appointed a Credit Committee to
consider the granting of credit facilities at diffat levels, based on the credit limit, focusing on
borrowers’ ability to make repayment, the type wddit, the financial status of the borrower, the
economic situation and the status of the borrowiedtistry. Furthermore, the Bank has established
an independent Credit Review Unit to ensure thatdredit approval process is transparent and
effective.

The maximum credit risk exposure is the carryinge@f the financial assets after deducting allasgan
for losses as stated in the statements of finapasition, and the risk of off-statements of finahc
position commitments, e.g., loan guarantees arat gtimrantees, and derivative contracts.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank will be able to pay its debts and obligations when due
because of an inability to convert assets into cashecause of its failure to procure enough funds

The Treasury group of the Bank is responsible ifpridity management, including procurement of
both short and long-term sources of funds, and debtrrity investment management. The overall
liquidity risk management is under the responsjbdf the Asset and Liability Management Committee,
who monitor and control risk, using tools to manéigaidity risk, such as minimum liquidity asset
requirements, liquidity gap, liquidity ratio andiidity risk limits.
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3

Financial risk management(cont’d)

3.2

3.3

Accounting for derivative financial instrumentsand hedging activities

The Bank is party to derivative financial instrurtggrwhich mainly comprise foreign currency forward
contracts, interest rate swap agreements, futureramis, and exchange rate options. Such instrisraea
not recognised in the financial statements on iticap

Foreign currency forward contracts protect the @réom movements in exchange rates by establishing
the rate at which a foreign currency asset willrbalised or a foreign currency liability settlednyA
increase or decrease in the amount required tosee#the asset or settle the liability is offset &y
corresponding movement in the value of the forwaexdhange contract. The gains and losses on the
derivative instruments and the underlying finanaaket or liability are therefore offset for finaic
reporting purposes and are not recognised in tlenfial statements. The fee incurred in establishach
agreement is amortised over the contract pericahyf

Interest rate swap agreements protect the Group fm@vements in interest rates. Any differentiabt
paid or received on an interest rate swap agreeimergicognised as a component of interest revenue o
expense over the period of the agreement. Gaingoards on early termination of interest rate sveapm
repayment of the borrowing are taken to profitassl

Disclosures about derivative financial instrumentsvhich the Group is a party are provided in Nébes to
the financial statements.

Fair value estimation

When a financial instrument is traded in an actiwarket, its quoted market price provides the best
evidence of fair value. The quoted market price dorasset held or liability to be issued is usutiky
current bid price and, for an asset to be acquireliability held, it is the current offer or askjrprice.
When the current bid and offer prices are unavkilabe price of the most recent transaction mayide
evidence of the current fair value provided thatr¢hhas not been a significant change in economic
circumstances between the transaction date ancplogting date. When the Group has matching asskt a
liability positions, it may appropriately use midarket prices as a basis for establishing fair \alue

When there is infrequent activity in a market, tharket is not well established or small volumesteaded
relative to the number of trading units of a finahinstrument to be valued, quoted market pricay mot

be indicative of the fair value of the instrumelmnt.these circumstances, as well as when a quotekema
price is not available, estimation techniques mayused to determine the fair value with sufficient
reliability to satisfy the Group. Techniques thes avell established in financial markets includéerence

to the current market value of another instrumdsatt tis substantially the same, discounted cash flow
analysis and option pricing models. In applyingcdisted cash flow analysis, an enterprise usescauint
rate equal to the prevailing market rate of intefes financial instruments having substantialle tsame
terms and characteristics, including the credithiodss of the debtor, the remaining term over wiieh
contractual interest rate is fixed, the remainiagnt for repayment of the principal and the curreity
which payments are to be made.

The fair value of publicly traded derivatives amdding and available for-sale investments is based
guoted market prices at the end of the reportingpgdeThe fair value of interest rate swaps is ghated as
the present value of the estimated future cashsflde fair value of forward foreign exchange cacis is

determined using forward exchange market ratdseaend of the reporting period.
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4

Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and fijgements

Estimates, assumptions and judgements are cofgirmaluated and are based on historical experieandeother
factors, including expectations of future event tre believed to be reasonable under the cirameess.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions congetimnfuture. The resulting accounting estimatdl ly
definition, seldom equal the related actual restilte estimates and assumptions that have a sanifisk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts oftass®l liabilities within the next financial yeaeautlined below.

(@) Allowance for doubtful accounts for loans

The Group considers an allowance for doubtful ant®to reflect impairment of loans relating to restied
losses resulting from the inability of customersnake required payments. The allowance for douéatitounts
is significantly impacted by the Group’s assessn@niuture cash flows, such assessment being based
consideration of historical collection experienkeown and identified instances of default and odegition
of market trends.

(b) Fair value of financial derivative instruments

In determining the fair value of financial derivaiinstruments, the management has made judgmersirny a
variety of acceptable valuation techniques. Theutigarameter to the models used is taken from ehisker
markets, and includes consideration of maturitgrast rate, correlation and volatility, etc.

(c) Impairment of investments

Investments are reviewed for impairment losses edmnevents or changes in circumstances indicatetig
carrying amount may not be recoverable. In det@ngithe impairment losses, management believed tha
estimations are reasonable.

(d)  Allowance for impairment of property for sale

The Group assesses allowance for impairment oeptypfor sale when net realisable value falls belogvbook
value. The management uses judgment to estimateirimgnt losses, taking into consideration the tates
appraised value of assets, the type and naturbeofs$sets. However, the use of different estimaites
assumptions could affect the amounts of the alloevdor impairment. Therefore, allowance for impantmay

be adjusted in the future.

(e) Building, equipment and intangible assets

Management determines the estimated useful livesesidual values for the Bank and subsidiariedtling,
equipment and intangible assets. Management wiaghe depreciation charge where useful livesrasidual
values are different than previously estimatedt, will write off or write down technically obsoletor assets that
have been abandoned or sold.

(f)  Provision for post retirement benefits and pen®n fund

The Bank has a commitment on provision of posteetent benefits and pension funds for employedse T
present value of employee benefit liabilities ratsgd in the statement of financial position isd®ined on the
present value of estimated future cash outflowstaif. The assumptions used in determining theyear cost
for employee benefits includes the salary and yefassrvices of respective employees which arelpaya the
future and discount rate. Any changes in thesamsians will impact the net year cost recordedeimployee
benefits.
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5

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital argafeguard the ability to continue as a going conaeorder

to provide returns for shareholders and benefitefoer stakeholders, and to maintain an optimpitabstructure
to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital struetuthe Group may adjust the amount of dividendsl pai
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issueshares or sell assets to reduce debt obligatio

Moreover, the Bank is required to manage its chhitads in accordance with the Act on Undertakifigdanking
Business B.E.2551. The Bank’s capital fund is preskin Note 25 to the financial statement.
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6 Interbank and money market items, net (assets)
Consolidated
2012 2011
At-call Term Total At call Term Total
Million Million Million Million Million Million
Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht
Domestic:
Bank of Thailand and the Financial
Institutions Development Fund 2,239 - 2,239 1,401 - 1,401
Commercial banks 61 1,000 1,061 602 45 647
Other banks 9 4,300 4,309 6 - 6
Finance, finance and securities, securities,
and credit foncier companies 544 _ 544 544 - 544
Other financial institutions - 1,352 1,352 - 561 561
Total domestic items 2,853 6,652 9,505 2,553 606 3,159
Add accrued interest receivables - 1 1 - - -
Less allowance for doubtful debts - (34) (34) - (3) 3)
Domestic items, net 2,853 6,619 9,472 2,553 603 3,156
Foreign:
US dollar 555 - 555 1,942 - 1,942
Yen 20 - 20 17 - 17
Euro 19 - 19 28 - 28
Other currencies 62 - 62 62 - 62
Foreign items, net 656 - 656 2,049 - 2,049
Domestic and foreign items, net 3,509 6,619 10,128 4,602 603 5, 205
The Bank
2012 2011
At call Term Total At call Term Total
Million Million Million Million Million Million
Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht
Domestic:
Bank of Thailand and the Financial
Institutions Development Fund 2,239 - 2,239 1,401 - 1,401
Commercial banks 36 1,000 1,036 26 - 26
Other banks - 4,300 4,300 - - -
Finance, finance and securities, securities,
and credit foncier companies 544 - 544 544 - 544
Other financial institutions - 1,352 1,352 - 561 561
Total domestic items 2,819 6,652 9,471 1,971 561 2,532
Add accrued interest receivables - 1 1 - - -
Less allowance for doubtful debts - (34) (34) - 4) (4)
Domestic items, net 2,819 6,619 9,438 1,971 557 2,528
Foreign:
US dollar 555 - 555 1,942 - 1,942
Yen 20 - 20 17 - 17
Euro 19 - 19 28 - 28
Other currencies 62 - 62 62 - 62
Foreign items, net 656 - 656 2,049 - 2,049
Domestic and foreign items, net 3,475 6,619 10,094 4,020 557 4,577

As at 31 December 2012, the Bank had promissorgsnof Baht 54million (31 December 2011: Baht 547
million), that were issued by financial institut®which were ordered to be closed, and are aval¢kdedFinancial
Institution Development Fund (FIDF).

The FIDF recalled promissory notes amounting tot B million (31 December 2011: Baht 54#illion) to cancel
the aval as the FIDF is of the opinion that the Blaas no obligations in respect of the relatedillizs.

29



CIMB Thai Bank Public Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements

For the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011

6 Interbank and money market items, net (assetgront’d)

However, the Bank has not yet returned the promyseotes to the FIDF in order to retain its rightdlaim
compensation from the FIDF should the Bank neechttertake responsibility for any obligations in thiure.

As of the statements of financial position datehspromissory notes avaled by FIDF had been predexs assets
and the related obligations were presented aditiabiin the same amount of Baht 5dllion (31 December

2011: Baht 544nillion).

7 Derivatives

7.1 Trading derivatives

Fair value and notional amount classified by typaak

Exchange rate
Interest rate

Total

Consolidated and the Bank

2012 2011
Fair value Fair value

Notional Notional

Asset Liability amount Asset Liability amount

Million Million Million Million Million Million
Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht
776 403 82,781 1,023 767 55,973
1,692 1,598 336,153 1,503 1,504 227,125
2,468 2,001 418,934 2,526 2,271 283,098

Proportion of derivative transactions classifiedtype of counterparty and considering notional amtou

Financial institutions
Companiesn group
External parties

Total

7.2  Derivative for hedging

Fair value hedge

Interest rate

Total

Consolidated and the Bank

2012 2011
Proportion Proportion
80 85
15 7
5 8
100 100
Consolidated and the Bank
2012 2011
Fair value Fair value
Notional Notional
Asset Liability = amount Asset Liability = amount
Million Million Million Million Million Mill ion
Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht
6 1 676 1 - 251
6 1 676 1 - 251
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7 Derivatives(cont'd)
7.2  Derivative for hedging(cont'd)
Fair value hedges are used to hedge the exposuteatmges in fair value of financial assets andnitiel
liabilities due to movements in market interesesatThe Group enters into interest rate swaps dgehe
against interest rate risk of loans, bill of exajp@amnd negotiable certificate of deposit. The ckarig fair
value of the hedging instruments and hedged iterasrecognisedn the statementof comprehensive
income.
The net gains (losses) arising from fair value lesdigpr the years endéd December2012 and2011 can
be summarised as follows:
Consolidated and the Bank
2012 2011
Million Baht Million Baht
Gainson hedginginstruments, net 4 1
Losses on the hedged items, net (4) (2)
8 Investments, net
8.1 Classified by type of investment
Consolidated The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
Fair value Fair value Fair value Fair value
Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht
Securities held for trading
Government and state enterprises securities 2,929 2,130 2,929 2,130
Private sectordebt securities 357 48 357 48
Domestic marketable equity securities - 26 - -
Total securities held for trading 3,286 2,204 3,286 2,178
Available-for-sale securities
Government and state enterprises securities 10,962 8,229 10,962 8,229
Private sector debt securities 908 195 908 195
Domestic marketable equity securities 2,732 2,662 2,732 2,645
Total available-for-sales securities 14,602 11,086 14,602 11,069
Cost/ Cost/ Cost/ Cost/
Amortised Cost Amortised Cost  Amortised Cost  Amortised Cost
Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht
Held-to-maturity debt securities
Government andstate enterprises securities 21,538 17,489 21,538 17,489
Promissory notes issued by
Thai Asset Management Corporation 282 469 282 469
Private sector debt securities 321 592 321 592
Investments imeceivables (Note 8.6) 178 569 178 524
Total 22,319 19,119 22,319 19,074
Lessallowance for impairment (117) 173 (117) (136)
Total held-to-maturity debt securities 22,202 18,946 22,202 18,938
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8 Investments, nef{cont’d)

8.1

Classified by type of investmenfcont'd)

Consolidated The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
Fair value Fair value Fair value Fair value
Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht

General investments

Domestic non-marketable equity securities 452 514 452 514
Overseas non-marketable equity securities 14 14 14 14
Total 466 528 466 528
Lessallowance for impairment (233) (221 (233) (221)
Total general investments 233 307 233 307
Investments, net 40,323 32543 40,323 32492

(&) As at 31 December 2012, held-to-maturity delousties classified as long-term investments idetl

(b)

(©)

promissory notes which were received from TAMC éttlement for non-performing loans transferred
to TAMC (as already discussed in Note 46 to tharfoial statements) amounting to Baht 282 million
(31 December 2011: Baht 469 million). Such promigswtes are non-transferable and avaled by the
FIDF.

As at 31 December 2012, the Bank had an inwestim the Vayupak Fund 1, which is a marketable
security. The cost of such investment is Baht 2,60llon (31 December 2011: Baht 2,500 million)
and it is presented at its fair value of Baht 2,6@lion (31 December 2011: Baht 2,578 million) thvi
the gain from revaluation amounting to Baht 165lionl (31 December 2011: Baht 78 million)
presented in shareholders’ equity. The presentatidair value is in accordance with Thai Accountin
Standard No. 105 concerning Accounting for Investivie Debt and Equity Securities. The investee
fund was established in accordance with a Cabgsilution passed on 1 July 2003, with a registered
capital of Baht 100,000 million. It is a ten-yeam@l with a policy to guarantee principal and a
minimum return. The fund units cannot be redeemedr go maturity and the Bank presents the
investment as long-term investment in availables@e securities.

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the Bankiinagbtments pledged as collateral, as mentioned in
Note 40.1 to the financial statements.
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8 Investments, nef{cont’d)

8.2 Classified by the remaining period to maturityof the debt securities

Consolidated and the Bank

2012 2011
Periods remaining Periods remaining
1-5 Over 1-5 Over
1 year years  5years Total 1 year years  5years Total

Million Million Million Million Million Million Million Million
Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht

Available-for-sale securities
Government and state

enterprises securities 2,207 8,614 107 10,928 1,504 4,938 1,742 8,184
Private sector debt securities 188 414 299 901 50 110 35 195
Total 2,395 9,028 406 11,829 1,554 5,048 1,777 8,379
Add (Less)allowance for revaluation - 37 4 41 3 2) 44 45
Available-for-sale securities, net 2,395 9,065 410 11,870 1,557 5,046 1,821 8,424

Held-to-maturity securities
Government and state

enterprises securities 8,563 11,815 1,160 21,538 3,851 13,140 498 17,489
Promissory notes issued by TAMC 282 - - 282 336 133 - 469
Private sector debt securities 301 20 - 321 291 301 - 592

Total 9,146 11,835 1,160 22,141 4,478 13,574 498 18,550
Lessallowance for impairment (55) - - (55) (40) (16) - (56)

Held-to-maturity securities, net 9,091 11,835 1,160 22,086 4,438 13,558 498 18,494

Total debt securities 11,486 20,900 1,570 33,956 5,995 18,604 2,319 26,918

8.3 Investments representing shareholdings in whicthe Bank and its subsidiaries hold more than 10%
The following are equity securities in which theo@p holds more than 10% of the paid-up share dagfita

the investee companies, but those companies werelassified as subsidiaries and associated compani
The investments classified by industry are as vato

Consolidated and the Bank

2012 2011

Million Baht  Million Baht

Property development 1 1

Public utilities and services 17 17

Bank and finance 4 4

Total 22 22

Lessallowance for impairment (12) (11)
Investments representing shareholdings in which

the Group hold more than 10%, net 10 11
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8

Investments, net(cont’d)

8.4

8.5

8.6

Investments in investment units in which the Bak and its subsidiaries hold more than 10%

Investments in investment units in which the Grbofidls more than 10% of the paid-up fund which are n
treated as subsidiaries and associated compariiesn¥estments classified by type of fund are devis:

General investments
Investment in property funds
Lessallowance for impairment

General investments, net

Consolidated and the Bank

2012 2011
Cost Fair value Cost Fair value
Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht
226 261 :258
(3) 3)
223 258

Investments in companies having problems relatj to financial position and operating results

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the Group hafblibeing investments in companies, having problems
relating to financial positions and operating résul

Consolidated and the Bank

2012 2011
Allowance for Allowance for
revaluation/ Book revaluation/ Book
Cost impairment value Cost impairment value
Number of  Million Million Million  Number of Million Million Million
companies Baht Baht Baht companies Baht Baht Baht
Listed companies
under delisting
conditions 2 - - - 2 - - -
Business continuity
and/or weak financial
status and operating
performance 50 42 (42) - 51 42 (42) -
Defaulted debt securities 18 1 1) - 18 2 2) -
70 43 (43) - 71 44 (44) -
Investments in receivables
Consolidated The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht
Investments in receivables 178 569 178 524
Lessallowance for impairment (62) (117 (62) (80)
116 452 116 444

Investments in receivables, net
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8 Investments, net(cont’d)

8.6 Investments in receivablegcont’d)

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the outstandiagd®s of loan receivables can be summarised las/ol

2012 2011
Estimated Estimated
Purchase rate of Purchase rate of
Principal price return Principal price return
Number of Million Million (yield) Number of Million Million (yield)*
debtors Baht Baht % debtors Baht Baht %
Consolidated
Total accumulated
investments in receivables 5,857 22,948 6,996 19 6,046 24,833 7,069 19
Outstanding investments
in receivables as at
the statements of
financial positiondate 123 1,437 178 - 306 3,411 569 -
The Bank
Total accumulated
investments in receivables 5,857 22,948 6,996 19 5,857 22,948 6,996 19
Outstanding investments
in receivables as at
the statements of
financial positiondate 123 1,437 178 - 155 1,860 524 -

*Excluded yield of investment in receivable of asidiary which the outstanding as at 31 Decembef 20Baht 45 million.

8.7 Investments in subsidiary, net
The Bank
Percentage of holding Cost method
Nature of Type of 2012 2011 2012 2011
Company name business securities % %  Million Baht  Million Baht
Subsidiaries - included in
consolidated financial statements
CIMB Securities (Thailand) Co., Ltd. Securities rllmon stock - 100 - 1,775
CT Caoll Co., Ltd. Debt collection Common stock 100 100 38 38
Center Auto Lease Co., Ltd. Leasing/hire-
purchase Common stock 100 100 703 703
Worldlease Co., Ltd. Hire-purchase
and motorcycles
motorcycle trading Common stock 100 75 417 248
Subsidiary - not included in
consolidated financial statements
Krung Thai Thanakit Finance Plc. In process of
liquidation Common stock 99 99 562 562
Total 1,720 3,326
Lessallowance for impairment (687) (1,403)
1,033 1,923

Investments in subsidiary, net

On 11 January 2011, BT Business Consulting Co., Mitlich is a registered subsidiary, changed itasna
to CT Coll Co., Ltd.

On 3 February 2011, BT Leasing Co., Ltd., whiclaisegistered subsidiary, changed its hame to Center
Auto Lease Co., Ltd.

The Board of Directors meeting No. 6/2011 on 24eJ@011 approved increased registered capital of
CIMB Securities (Thailand) Co.,Ltd. from Baht 50@lion to Baht 1,800 million; and then the Extraorary
General Meeting No. 2/2011 dated on 26 August 2jfiroved the increase of capital of Baht 1,300ionill

by issuing new ordinary shares with a par valuBatit 10 per share.

On 7 September 2011, CIMB Securities (Thailand), Cal. increased its registered ordinary shareBadft
600 million to the total registered and paid-uprehzapital of Baht 1,100 and registered with thaibtry
of Commerce on 7 September 2011.
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8.7 Investments in subsidiary, nefcont’d)

Sale of investments in CIMB Securities (Thailand) @ td.

On 12 April 2012, the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders Nod®lved that the Bank sell its
investment in equity of CIMB Securities (Thailar@., Ltd. 109,999,993 shares which was 99.99% @f th
registered capital to CIMB Securities InternatioR#&d Ltd., the subsidiary of the CIMB Group.

On 2 July 2012, the Bank sold its shareholding lIME Securities (Thailand) Co., Ltd. The Bank reaav
cash from selling stock amounting to Baht 1,11 7iomil

Purchase of investments in ordinary shares in ieagk Co., Ltd.

On 19 April 2012, the Board of Directors’ meeting N&2012 approved an increase in registered capital of
Worldlease Co., Ltd., in which the Bank ha35a04% share, from Bah240 million to Baht400 million.
Worldlease Co., Ltd. called fd&5% paid-up capital and the Bank settled the increassital of Baht
30,016,667 on 27 April 2012. On 2 May2012, Worldlease Co., Ltd. registered the capital insgewith the
Ministry of CommerceAfter the registration, the registered capital obNtllease Co., Ltd was Baht 400
million.

On 18 December 2012, the Bank bought investmeotdmary shares in Worldlease Co.,Ltd., which dre a
the remaining shares that the Bank did not own,@8%,333 shares or 24.96% with a total considaenaifo

Baht 140 million. The proportion of the Bank’s stlanlding in the company increased from 75.04% to
99.99% of the total issue and paid-up shares dayitae company.

9 Loans and accrued interest receivables, net

9.1 Classified by loan type

Consolidated The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht
Bank overdrafts 7,209 6,702 7,216 6,702
Loans 85,242 68,584 90,253 72171
Bills 34,537 34470 39,228 38,005
Hire-purchase receivables 15,137 11,137 - -
Securities business receivables - 751 - -
Others 35 76 16 73
Total loans 142,160 121,720 136,713 116951
Valuation reserve from hedging 7 Q) 7 Q)
Less deferred revenue (3,307) (2,430 (3) (3)
Total loans net of deferred revenue 138,846 119,289 136,703 116,947
Add accrued interest receivables 370 279 375 278

Total loans net of deferred revenue
and accrued interest receivables 139,216 119,568 137,078 117,225
Less allowance for doubtful debts (Note 10)
Minimum allowance for doubtful accounts
required based on BoT’s guidelines

- Individual approach (1,427) (1,681) (1,524) (1,691
- Collective approach (408) (261) - -
General provision for further losses (1,561) (1,403 (1,561) (1,403
Less revaluation allowance for debt
restructuringNote 11) (16) (13 (16) (13
Loans and accrued interest receivables, net 135,804 116,212 133,977 114,120
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9

Loans and accrued interest receivables, nétont'd)

9.2 Classified by currency and residency of debtors
Consolidated
2012 2011
Domestic Foreign Total Domestic Foreign Total
Milion Baht  Milion Baht  Million Baht ~ Milion Baht ~ Million Baht ~ Million Baht
Baht 132,817 304 133,121 113291 326 113617
US dollar 4,000 1,531 5,531 5,479 - 5,479
Other currencies 194 - 194 193 - 193
Total loans net of deferred revenue 137,011 1,835 138,846 118,963 326 119,289
The Bank
2012 2011
Domestic Foreign Total Domestic Foreign Total
Milion Baht ~ Milion Baht  Million Baht ~ Milion Baht ~ Million Baht ~ Million Baht
Baht 130,674 304 130,978 110,949 326 111275
US dollar 4,000 1,531 5,531 5,479 - 5,479
Other currencies 194 - 194 193 - 193
Total loans net of deferred revenue 134,868 1,835 136,703 116,621 326 116947
9.3 Classified by types of business and loan cld&sation
Consolidated
2012
Securities
and hire
Special Sub- Doubtful purchase
Pass mention standard Doubtful of loss receivables Total
Million Million Million Million Million Million Million
Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht
Agricultural and mining 3,168 3 - - 11 - 3,182
Manufacturing and commerce 48,563 1,860 456 157 770 - 51,806
Real estate and construction 11,054 811 93 - 188 - 12,146
Public utilities and services 14,699 2,335 104 18 666 - 17,822
Personal cash 5,617 254 219 14 8 - 6,112
Housing loans 24,542 332 163 168 409 - 25,614
Hire-purchase receivable and
financial lease receivable - - - - - 11,833 11,833
Others 9,933 145 75 36 122 20 10,331
Total loans net of deferred revenue 117,576 5,740 1,110 393 2,174 11,853 138,846
Consolidated
2011
Securities
and hire
Special Sub- Doubtful purchase
Pass mention standard Doubtful of loss receivables Total
Million Million Million Million Million Million Million
Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht
Agricultural and mining 2,278 12 - - 11 - 2,301
Manufacturing and commerce 289 3,740 234 546 747 - 47536
Real estate and construction ,8@7 817 145 120 251 - 10,200
Public utilities and services 15,193 1,232 697 29 173 - 17,324
Personal cash , 980 318 211 3 9 - 5,521
Housing loans 18,441 359 151 135 211 - 19,297
Hire-purchase receivable and
financial lease receivable - - - - - 8,710 8,710
Others 7,334 95 88 44 86 753 8,400
Total loans net of deferred revenue 99,362 6,573 1,526 877 1,488 9,463 119289
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9 Loans and accrued interest receivables, nétont'd)

9.3 Classified by types of business and loan cld&sation (cont'd)

The Bank
2012
Special Sub- Doubtful
Pass mention standard Doubtful of loss Total
Milion Baht  Milion Baht ~ Million Baht ~ Milion Baht ~ Million Baht ~ Million Baht
Agricultural and mining 3,168 3 - - 11 3,182
Manufacturing and commerce 48,563 1,860 456 157 770 51,806
Real estate and construction 11,054 811 93 - 188 12,146
Public utilities and services 14,699 2,335 104 18 666 17,822
Personal cash 5,617 254 218 14 8 6,111
Housing loans 24,542 332 164 168 409 25,615
Others 19,643 145 75 36 122 20,021
Total loans net of deferred revenue 127,286 5,740 1,110 393 2,174 136,703
The Bank
2011
Special Sub- Doubtful
Pass mention standard Doubtful of loss Total
MillionBaht ~ Milion Baht ~ Milion Baht  Million Baht  Million Baht  Million Baht
Agricultural and mining 2,278 12 - - 11 2,301
Manufacturing and commerce 42,269 3,740 234 546 747 47,536
Real estate and construction 8,867 817 145 120 251 10,200
Public utilities and services 15,193 1,232 697 29 173 17,324
Personal cash 4,980 318 211 3 9 5,521
Housing loans 18,440 359 151 135 211 19,296
Others 14,456 95 88 44 86 14,769
Total loans net of deferred revenue 106,483 6,573 1,526 877 1,488 116,947

9.4 Classification of loans

The Group classified loans by type and/or basethemverdue date as summarised below.

(@) Loans of the Group
Consolidated

2012 2011
Loans and Allowance Loans and Allowance
accrued Balance provided accrued Balance provided
interest after in the interest after in the

receivables collateral®  Minimum accounts receivables collateral®  Minimum accounts
Million Million Million Million Million Million Million Million

Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht
Minimum allowance
for doubtful
accounts based
on BoT
guidelines
- Pass 128,127 52,064 1 518 107,720 41,660 1 416
- Special mention 7,064 2,753 2 57 7,684 2,653 2 62
- Sub-standard 1,316 544 100 524 1,669 524 100 514
- Doubtful 478 194 100 198 984 375 100 435
- Doubtful-of-loss 2,231 489 100 538 1,511 473 100 515
- General provision
for further
losses 1,561 1,403
Total 139,216 56,044 3,396 119,568 45,685 3,345

For provision for sub-standard, doubtful and daulktf-loss loans, which is set up in accordancdWwibT's notification No. Sor

Nor Sor 31/2551, the debt balance after collatertile debt balance remaining after deducting tiesgmt value of expected future
cash flows from debt collection or from collatedédposal, as the case may be.
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9.4 Classification of loangcont'd)

The Bank
2012 2011
Loans and Allowance Loans and Allowance
accrued Balance provided accrued Balance provided
interest after in the interest after in the
receivables collateral ®  Minimum accounts receivables collateral®  Minimum accounts
Million Million percentage Million Million Million percentage Million
Baht Baht % Baht Baht Baht % Baht
Minimum
allowance for
doubtfulaccounts
based on BoT
guidelines
- Pass 127,608 51,564 1 512 106,721 41,342 1 413
- Special mention 5,780 1,468 2 29 6,609 1,579 2 41
- Sub-standard 1,120 383 100 383 1,528 420 100 420
- Doubtful 396 112 100 112 879 325 100 325
- Doubtful-of-loss 2,174 432 100 488 1,488 450 100 492
- General provision
for further
losses 1,561 1,403
Total 137,078 53,959 3,085 117,225 44,116 3,094

For provision for sub-standard, doubtful and daulbtf-loss loans, which is set up in accordancéni8oT notification No. Sor
Nor Sor 31/2551, the debt balance after collatertile debt balance remaining after deducting tiesgmt value of expected future
cash flows from debt collection or from collatedédposal, as the case may be.

As at 31 December 2012, there were defaulted laar@unting to Baht 3,117 million (31 December 2011:
Baht 3,447) for which the Bank has ceased accruat@rest income on accrual basis.

(b)  Securities business receivables of the subsidia

Securitiesbusinesgreceivables Allowancdor doubtful accounts Allowancefor
and accruedinterest asrequired by SEC doubtful accounts

2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht

Pass - 682 - - - -
Sub-standard debt - 17 - - - -
Doubtful debt - 55 - 55 - 61
Total - 754 - 55 - 61

39



CIMB Thai Bank Public Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements
For the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011

9 Loans and accrued interest receivables, nétont'd)

9.4

9.5

Classification of loangcont’d)

(c) Hire-purchase receivables and financial leaseeceivables of the subsidiaries

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, hire-purchasévadbdes and financial lease receivables of the

subsidiaries were classified based on overdue datéslows:

Debt balance, net Allowance for
unearned income doubtful accounts
2012 2011 2012 2011

Million Baht  Million Baht  Million Baht Million Baht

Current or overdue less than

1 installment 10,213 7,439 103 74
Overdue 2-3 installments 1,285 1,075 28 22
Overdue 4-6 installments 196 123 141 93
Overdue 7-12 installments 82 50 81 49
Overdue more than

12 installments 51 18 50 18
Debtors under litigation 5 5 5 5

Total 11,832 8,710 408 261

Non-performing loans

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the Group hafdltbeing non-performing loans, according to théeria
set up by the Bank of Thailand and the Office ef8ecurities and Exchange Commission.

Consolidated The Bank

2012 2011 2012 2011
Million Baht  Million Baht  Million Baht Million Baht

Non-performing loans (principal only)

Banking business 3,678 3,891 3,678 3,891
Other businesses 334 219 - -
As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the above noosparfg loans under the BoT’s criteria were presgnte
in accordance with the notification of the BoT'&fiding non-performing loans to be debts classithsd
sub-standard, doubtful and doubtful-of-loss, andleking outstanding loans for which debt restruciir

agreements have been made and conditions to uptragmess class or special mention class in accoedan

with BoT criteria have already been fulfilled.
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9.6 Hire-purchase and finance lease receivables

As at 31 December 2012, subsidiaries had receigabider hire-purchase agreements and financiatdeas
totalling Baht 11,424 million (31 December 2011:hB&,449 million) mostly comprising hire-purchase
agreements and financial leases for cars and matesc The term of the agreements are generallydsat
three and six years and interest is mostly chaagedfixed rate.

Consolidated as at 2012
Amounts due under lease agreement

Non -

Less than performing
1 year 1-5years Over5 years loans Total
Million Baht ~ Million Baht  Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht
Gross investment in the lease 4,872 9,519 293 453 15,137
Lessunearned finance income (1,209) (1,906) (71) (119) (3,305)

Present value of minimum lease

payments receivable 3,663 7,613 222 334 11,832
Lessallowance for doubtful accounts (408)

Net receivables under hire-purchase
agreements and financial leases 11,424

Consolidated as at 2011
Amounts due under lease agreement

Non -
Less than performing
1 year 1-5years Over5 years loans Total
Million Baht ~ Million Baht  Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht
Gross investment in the lease 3,487 7,119 268 263 11,137
Lessunearned finance income (862) (1,433) (65) (67) (2,427)
Present value of minimum lease
payments receivable 2,625 5,686 203 196 8,710
Lessallowance for doubtful accounts (261)

Net receivables under hire-purchase
agreements and financial leases 8,449
9.7 Troubled debt restructuring
As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the Bank enter@dtioubled debt restructuring agreements with
debtors. The number of debtors and their debt bakiincluding recorded accrued interest receigble

before restructuring can be summarised below:

Consolidated and the Bank

2012 2011
Number of debtors 1,970 2,090
Debt balances (Million Baht) 2,407 1,579
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9.7 Troubled debt restructuring (cont’d)

The restructured debtors referred to above canldssified by method of troubled debt restructurayy
described below:

Consolidated and the Bank
2012
Debt balances

Before After
Number restructuring restructuring
of debtors  Million Baht  Million Baht

Transfer of asset in full selttlement 1 139 -
Modification of terms of payments 1,969 2,268 2,158
Total 1,970 2,407 2,158

Consolidated and the Bank
2011
Debt balances

Before After
Number restructuring restructuring
of debtors  Million Baht  Million Baht

Modification of terms of payments 2,090 1,579 1,578

Total 2,090 1,579 1,578

The debts restructured referred to above can Issifikd by the terms of repayment under the regiring
agreements as follows:

Consolidated and the Bank

2012 2011

Debt balances Debt balances
Before After Before After
Period of debts Number restructuring restructuring Number restructuring restructuring
restructuring contracts of debtors  Million Baht  Million Baht of debtors  Million Baht  Million Baht
Not more than 5 years 481 813 704 490 460 459
5-10 years 1,419 743 743 1,563 1,061 1,061
10 - 15 years 19 595 595 11 26 26
More than 15 years 50 116 116 26 32 32
Total 1,969 2,267 2,158 2,090 1,579 1,578

Supplemental information relating to the restruatudebts for the years ended 31 December 2012Giid 2
are as follows:

Consolidated and the Bank

2012 2011
Million Baht Million Baht

Loss on debt restructuring 39 2
Interest income 238 264
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Loans and accrued interest receivables, nétont'd)

9.7

Troubled debt restructuring (cont'd)

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the troubled delftr which the Group completed their debt
restructuring can be summarised as follows:

Consolidated The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
Number of debtors 6,928 7,411 6,928 7,409
Debt balances after restructuring (Million Baht) 2,819 2,807 2,819 2,786

In cases where the troubled debt restructuring lu@g modifications of the terms and the repayment
conditions, the fair value of the loans after nestiuring is determined based on the net presenievat
expected future cashflows, discounted by the marketest rate. As at 31 December 2012, the Bak h
losses from the revaluation of restructured deB¢ (oss) of Baht 16 million (31 December 2011:
Baht 11 million) for which the it provided an allance for revaluation as a result of debt restrirgur

In addition, as at 31 December 2012 the Bank mag tarealise additional losses of about Baht Aflomi
(31 December 2011: Baht 20 million) from debt nesturing through waiver of part of the principal or
interest receivables if the restructured debtoesadnie to comply with the conditions as stipulatethe debt
restructuring agreements. The Bank had alreadyigedva provision for such losses, which is presbate
part of the allowance for doubtful debts in theestgents of financial position.
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Allowance for doubtful debts

Consolidated

Balance as at 1January 2012
Add addition during the year
Transfer from revaluation
allowance for debt
restructuring
Transfer from Bangkok
Commercial Asset
Management Co., Ltd.
Reversal of bad debts
Less bad debts written off
Transfer to Sathorn Asset
Management Co., Ltd.
Transfer to revaluation
allowance for debt
restructuring
Increase (decrease) due to
change in classification,
collateral
value or transfer general
provision to specific
provision
Transfer to assets of
disposal group which
was sold during the year

Balance as at 31 December 2012

Balance as at 1 January 2011
Add addition during the year
Transfer from revaluation
allowance for debt
restructuring
Transfer from allowance
for sold non-performing
loan to Sathorn Asset
Management Co., Ltd.
Transfer from investment
in account receivable
Reversal of bad debts
Less bad debts written off
Transfer to revaluation
allowance for debt
restructuring
Increase (decrease) due to
change in collateral
value or transfer general
provision to specific
provision

Balance as at 31 December 2011

2012

General Securities

provision and

for hire-
Special Sub- Doubtful further purchase  Grand
Pass mention standard Doubtful -of-loss losses Total receivables total
Million Million Million Million Million Million Million Million Million
Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht
342 41 420 325 492 1,403 3,023 322 3,345
- - - - 1,086 1,086 237 1,323
- - - - 7 7 - 7
- - - - 1 1 - 1
- - - - 53 53 (10) 43
- (521) (22) (19) - (562) 117) (679)
- - 41) (104) 437) - (582) - (582)
- - - - (12) (12) - (12)
73 (12) 525 87) 452 977) (26) - (26)
- - - - - - (24) (24)
415 29 383 112 488 1,561 2,988 408 3,396

Consolidated
2011
General

provision Securities

for and hire-
Special Sub- Doubtful further purchase  Grand
Pass mention standard Doubtful -of-loss losses Total receivables total
Million Million Million Million Million Million Million Million Million
Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht
305 33 691 60 362 955 2,406 199 2,605
(53) - - - - 942 889 188 1,077
- - - - - 3 3 - 3
- - - - - 7 7 - 7
- - - - - 14 14 - 14
- - - - - 299 299 - 299
- (139 (390) 1 (60) - (590) (63) (653)
- - - - - (5) (5) - (5)
90 147 119 266 190 (812) - ®)) ®))
342 41 420 325 492 1,403 3,023 322 3,345
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Balance as at 1 January 2012
Add addition during the year
Transfer from revaluations allowance
for debt restructuring
Transfer from Bangkok Commercial
Asset Management Co., Ltd.
Reversal of bad debts
Lessbad debts written off
Transfer to Sathorn Asset
Management Co., Ltd.
Transfer to revaluations allowance for
debt restructuring
Increase (decrease) due to change
in classification, collateral
value or transfer general

provision to specific provision

Balance as at 31 December 2012

Balance as at 1 January 2011
Add addition during the year
Transfer from revaluations allowance
for debt restructuring
Transfer from allowance for sold
non-performing loan to Sathorn Asset
Management Co., Ltd.
Reversal of bad debts

Trasfer trom investment in account receivable

Lessbad debts written off
Transfer to revaluations allowance for
debt restructuring
Increase (decrease) due to change
in classification, collateral
value or transfer general

provision to specific provision

Balance as at 31 December 2011

The Bank
2012
Special Sub- Doubtful ~ General

Pass mention standard Doubtful of loss provision Total

Million Million Million Million Million Million Million
Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht
413 41 420 325 492 1,403 3,094

- - - - - 1,086 1,086

- - - - - 7 7

- - - - - 1 1

- - - - - 53 53

- - (521) (22) (19) - (562)

- - (41) (104) (437) - (582)

- - - - - (12) (12)

99 (12) 525 87) 452 977) -
512 29 383 112 488 1,561 3,085

The Bank
2011
Special Sub- Doubtful ~ General

Pass mention standard Doubtful of loss provision Total
Million Million Million Million Million Million Million
Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht
323 34 691 59 363 954 2,424
- - - - - 942 942

- - - - - 3 3

- - - - - 7 7
- - - - - 299 299

- - - - - 14 14

- (139 (390 1) (60) - (590

- - - - - ®) ®)

90 146 119 267 189 (811 -
413 41 420 325 492 1,403 3,0%4
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11  Revaluation allowance for debt restructuring

Balance - beginning of the year

Add revaluation allowance transferred from allowarmedoubtful debts
Less revaluation allowance transferred to allowancedfmubtful debts

Balance - end of the year

Consolidated and the Bank

2012 2011

Million Baht  Million Baht
11 9

12 5

(7) 3

16 11

The write-off transactions and/or the adjustmeffit®waluation allowance for debt restructuring emsferred to

allowance for doubtful debts.

12  Properties for sale, net

Properties for sale represent properties from delate a result of debt restructuring, propertidaiobd as a result
of a successful bid for the mortgaged assets ofodelat auction, or unused assets transferredrasudt of a

merger and awaiting disposal.

Asset from debt repayment
Immovable
- Assessed by external appraiser
Movable

Total
Others

Total properties for sale
Less allowance for impairment

Properties for sale, net

Asset from debt repayment
Immovable
- Assessed by external appraiser
Movable

Total
Less allowance for impairment

Properties for sale, net

Consolidated

As at As at
1 January 31 December
2012 Additions Disposals 2012
Million Baht  Million Baht  Million Baht  Million Baht
1,982 181 (151) 2,012
25 698 (652) 71
2,007 879 (803) 2,083
- 18 - 18
2,007 897 (803) 2,101
(523) (68) 66 (525)
1,484 829 (737) 1,576
Consolidated
As at As at
1 January 31 December
2011 Additions Disposals 2011
Million Baht  Million Baht  Million Baht  Million Baht
2,645 4 (667) 1,982
15 521 (511) 25
2,660 525 (1,178) 2,007
(611) (22) 110 (523)
2,049 503 (1,068) 1,484
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12  Properties for sale, nefcont'd)
The Bank
As at As at
1 January 31 December
2012 Additions Disposals 2012
Million Baht  Million Baht  Million Baht  Million Baht
Asset from debt repayment
Immovable
- Assessed by external appraiser 1,975 181 (144) 2,012
Total 1,975 181 (144) 2,012
Others - 18 - 18
Total properties for sale 1,975 199 (144) 2,030
Less allowance for impairment (514) 2) 13 (503)
Properties for sale, net 1,461 197 (131) 1,527
The Bank
As at As at
1 January 31 December
2011 Additions Disposals 2011
Million Baht  Million Baht  Million Baht  Million Baht
Asset from debt repayment
Immovable
- Assessed by external appraiser 2,638 4 (667) 1,975
Total 2,638 4 (667) 1,975
Less allowance for impairment (605) - 91 (514)
Properties for sale, net 2,033 4 (576) 1,461

The Bank provides allowance for impairment of pmtipe for sale by reference to appraisal value. Bhak
appraises or reviews the fair value of propert@sshle annually in accordance with the Notificataf the Bank
of Thailand (BoT). However, the actual selling primay differ from the appraisal value. In addititme Bank is
subjected to restrictions on the allowable perigdmay hold such properties, as stipulated by ttznkB of
Thailand. If the Bank is unable to dispose of theperties within allowable periods, the Bank haseb aside
additional provision in accordance with the BankTdfiland guidelines. The Bank’s management belidhat
the carrying value of such properties is suitaloletite current situation and the current disposah pif its

properties for sale.
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Premises and equipment, net

Consolidated

Land

Cost

Revaluation surplus
(revaluation in
2011)

Devaluation of asset
(revaluation in
2011)

Buildings
Cost
Revaluation surplus
(revaluation in
2011)
Devaluation of asset
(revaluation in
2011)

Equipment

Assets under
installation and/or
construction

Total

Cost/appraisal value

Accumulated depreciation

As at Transfer to As at As at Transfer to As at Allowance
1 January properties Disposals/ 31 December 1 January properties Disposals/ 31 December for Net book
2012  Adjustment Additions for sale written off 2012 2012  Adjustment Additions for sale written off 2012 impairment value
Million Baht  Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht  Million Baht Million Baht
563 - - ?) ) 552 - - - - - - - 552
877 - - (15) ) 853 - - - - - - - 853
(38) - - - - (38) - - - - - - - (398)
2,068 - 23 ®) (79) 2,004 (980) - (102) 8 36 (1,038) - 966
1,082 872 - 6) ) 1,947 (748) (872) (45) 5 - (1,660) - 287
(78) 12) - - - (90) 53 11 5 - - 69 - @n
2,964 - 490 - (285) 3,169 (2,167) - (276) - 219 (2,224) (14) 931

249 - 81 - (292) 38 - - - - - -
7,687 860 594 31 (675) 8,435 (3,842) (861) (418) 13 255 (4,853) (14) 3,568
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13  Premises and equipment, ngtont’d)

Consolidated

Cost/appraisal value

Accumulated depreciation

As at As at As at As at
1 January Disposals/ 31 December 1 January Disposals/ 31 December  Allowance for Net book
2011 Additions written off 2011 2011 Additions written off 2011 impairment value
Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht
Land
Cost 563 - - 563 - - - - - 563
Revaluation surplus
(revaluation in 2011) 450 427 - 877 - - - - - 877
Devaluation of asset
(revaluation in 2011) (88) 50 - (38) - - - - - (38)
Buildings
Cost 2,145 103 (180) 2,068 (943) (105) 68 (980) - 1,088
Revaluation surplus
(revaluation in 2011) 180 904 ) 1,082 (63) (686) 1 (748) - 334
Devaluation of asset
(revaluation in 2011) a77) 97 2 (78) 85 (31) 1) 53 - (25)
Equipment 2,609 395 (40) 2,964 (1,973) (215) 21 (2,167) (14) 783
Assets under installation
And/or construction 68 431 (250) 249 - - - - - 249
Total 5,750 2,407 (470) 7,687 (2,894) (1,037) 89 (3,842) (14) 3,831
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13  Premises and equipment, ngtont’d)

Land
Cost
Revaluation surplus
(revaluation in 2011)
Devaluation of asset
(revaluation in 2011)

Buildings
Cost
Revaluation surplus
(revaluation in 2011)
Devaluation of asset
(revaluation in 2011)

Equipment

Assets under installation
and/or construction

Total

The Bank
Cost/appraisal value Accumulated depreciation

As at Transfer to As at As at Transfer to As at
1 January properties Disposals/ 31 December 1 January properties Disposals/ 31 December Allowance for Net book
2012 Adjustment Additions for sale written off 2012 2012  Adjustment Additions for sale written off 2012  impairment value
Million Baht  Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht
563 - - %) ©) 552 - - - - - - - 552
877 - - 15) ©) 853 - - - - - - - 853
(38) - - - - (38) - - - - - - - (38)
1,994 - 19 ) ) 2,003 (949) - 7 8 1 (1,037) - 966
1,082 872 - ©6) ) 1,947 (748) (872) (45) 5 - (1,660) - 287
(78) 12) - - - (90) 53 11 5 - - 69 - @1
2,657 - 452 - (96) 3,013 (1,963) - (248) - 83 (2,128) (14) 871

238 - 74 - (289) 23 - - - - - -
7,295 860 545 (32) (405) 8,263 (3,607) (861) (385) 13 84 (4,756) (14) 3,493
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13

Premises and equipment, ngtont’d)

Land
Cost
Revaluation surplus
(revaluation in 2011)
Devaluation of asset
(revaluation in 2011)

Buildings
Cost
Revaluation surplus
(revaluation in 2011)
Devaluation of asset
(revaluation in 2011)

Equipment

Assets under installation
and/or construction

Total

The Bank
Cost/appraisal value Accumulated depreciation

As at As at As at As at
1 January Disposals/ 31 December 1 January Disposals/ 31 December Allowance for Net book
2011 Additions written off 2011 2011 Additions written off 2011 impairment value
Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht
563 - - 563 - - - - - 563
450 427 - 877 - - - - - 877
(88) 50 - (38) - - - - - (38)
2,097 77 (180) 1,994 917) (100 68 (949) - 1,045
180 904 2) 1,082 (63) (686) 1 (748) - 334
(177) 97 2 (78) 85 (31) 1) 53 - (25)
2,359 326 (28) 2,657 (1,783 (190) 10 (1,963) (14) 680
68 407 (237) 238 - - - - - 238
5,452 2,288 (445) 7,295 (2,678 (1,007) 78 (3,607) (14) 3,674
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Intangible assets, net

Expenditures in connection with
development and improvement
of computer systems
- under development

Computer software

Licence fee

Total

Lessallowance for impairment

Intangible assets, net

Expenditures in connection with
development and improvement of
computer systems
- under development

Computer software

Licence fee

Total

Lessallowance for impairment

Intangible assets, net

Expenditures in connection with
development and improvement of
computer systems
- under development

Computer software

Licence fee

Total

Lessallowance for impairment

Intangible assets, net

Consolidated

As at As at

1 January Transfer Amorti- Written 31 December

2012 Increase in/(out) sation off 2012

Million Million Million Million Million Million

Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht

- 109 44 87 - (8) 58
5-10years 359 55 87 (116) (15) 370
5 years 3 - - ) 1) -
471 99 - (118) (24) 428

471 428

Consolidated

As at As at
1 January Transfer Amorti- Written 31 December

2011 Increase in/(out) sation off 2011

Million Million Million Million Million Million

Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht

- 60 98 (49) - - 109
5-10years 406 22 49 (19) (99) 359
5 years 4 - - - 1) 3
470 120 - (29) (100) 471

__ 19 -

451 471

The Bank

As at As at

1 January Transfer Amorti- 31 December

2012 Increase  In/(out) sation 2012

Amortising Million Million Million Million Million
period Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht

- 103 41 (86) - 58

5-10years 339 52 86 (113) 364

5 years 1 - - o) N

443 93 - (114) 422

443 422
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15

Intangible assets, netcont’d)

The Bank
As at As at
1 January Transfer Amorti- Written 31 December
2011 Increase in/(out) sation off 2011
Amortising Million Million Million Million Million Million
period Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht
Expenditures in connection with
development and improvement of
computer systems
- under development - 60 81 (38) - - 103
Computer software 5-10years 399 17 38 (29) (96) 339
Licence Fee 5 years 2 - - - 1) 1
Total 461 98 - (29) (97) 443
Lessallowance for impairment (19) -
Intangible assets, net 442 443
Other assets, net
Consolidated The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
Million baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht
Accrued interest and dividend receivables 406 258 406 258
Credit support assets on derivatives 390 331 390 331
Leasehold rights 12 15 12 15
Advances 16 18 16 18
Others assets awaiting account transfer 265 277 265 277
Commission receivables 18 13 18 13
Withholding tax receivable 150 99 133 93
Receivables from clearing house 129 - -
Marginal deposits 60 84 54 45
Account receiveable revenue department 49 - - -
Prepaid expenses 55 69 51 51
Others 153 138 96 69
Total 1,574 1,431 1,441 1,170
Lessallowance for impairment (36) (37) (36) (37)
1,538 1,394 1,405 1,133

Other assets, net
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16  Deposits

16.1 Classified by type of deposits

Consolidated The Bank

2012 2011 2012 2011

Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht
At-call 1,893 2,220 1,905 1,883
Savings 40,157 31,332 40,285 31,381
Fixed 92,208 67,748 92,219 67,753
Negotiable certificate of deposit 876 274 876 274

16.2 Classified by currency and residency of depdsis
Consolidated
2012 2011

Domestic Foreign Total Domestic Foreign Total

Million Million Million Million Million Million

Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht
Baht 130,135 1,036 131,171 100,451 757 101,208
US dollar 3,950 - 3,950 357 - 357
Other currencies 13 - 13 9 - 9
Total 134,098 1,036 135,134 100,817 757 101,574

The Bank
2012 2011

Domestic Foreign Total Domestic Foreign Total

Million Million Million Million Million Million

Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht
Baht 130,286 1,036 131,322 100,168 757 100,925
US dollar 3,950 - 3,950 357 - 357
Other currencies 13 - 13 9 - 9
Total 134,249 1,036 135,285 100,534 757 101,291
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17  Interbank and money market items (liabilities)

Consolidated

2012 2011
At-call Term Total At call Term Total
Million Million Million Million Million Million
Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht
Domestic:
The Bank of Thailand 612 612 - - -
Commercial banks 42 4,250 4,292 14 1,000 1,014
Other banks 119 1,000 1,119 53 400 453
Finance, finance and securities,
securities, and credit foncier
companies 1,614 306 1,920 336 2 338
Other financial institutions 587 1,260 1,847 308 32 340
Total domestic items 2,362 7,428 9,790 711 1,434 2,145
Foreign:
US dollar 213 - 213 1,641 - 1,641
Other currencies 783 524 1,307 534 467 1,001
Total foreign items 996 524 1,520 2,175 467 2,642
Total domestic and
foreign items 3,358 7,952 11,310 2,886 1,901 4,787
The Bank
2012 2011
At-call Term Total At call Term Total
Milli on Million Million Million Million Million
Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht
Domestic:
The Bank of Thailand 612 612 - - -
Commercial banks 42 3,300 3,342 14 500 514
Other banks 119 1,000 1,119 53 400 453
Finance, finance and securities,
securities, and credit foncier
companies 1,614 306 1,920 599 2 601
Other financial institutions 587 1,260 1,847 308 32 340
Total domestic items 2,362 6,478 8,840 974 934 1,908
Foreign:
US dollar 213 - 213 1,641 - 1,641
Other currencies 783 524 1,307 534 467 1,001
Total foreign items 996 524 1,520 2,175 467 2,642
Total domestic and
foreign items 3,358 7,002 10,360 3,149 1,401 4,550
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Financial liabilities designated at fair value lirough profit or loss

Consolidated and

the Bank
2012
Million Baht
Debentures 1,232
Bill of Exchange 303
Total 1,535

Proportion of transactions classified by type afimterparty and considering notional amount

Consolidated and

the Bank
2012
Proportion
Financial institutions 20
External parties 80
Total 100

Financial liabilities designated at fair value thgh profit or loss are bills of exchange and detest which will

mature in 11 and 5 years respectively with embedtididble range accrual swap. They bear interdst aa
THBFIX 6 month + 0.50% per annum with a paymenintérest every six months. The Bank entered intialcie

range accrual swaps with opposite conditions (hadback) with CIMB Bank Berhad (Note 32).
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19 Debt issued and borrowings

Hybrid instrument

Hybrid securities of Baht 2,500 million
maturing in 2019

Short term debentures

Short term debentures maturing in 2013,
coupon rate of 2.76% - 2.95% per annum

Subordinated debentures

Subordinated debentures of USD 40 million,
maturing in 2017

Non-interest-bearing subordinated debentures of

Baht 120 million, maturing in 2014
Subordinated debentures of

Baht 3,000 million, maturing in 2021
Subordinated debentures of

Baht 3,000 million, maturing in 2022
Subordinated debentures maturing in 2003

Fixed-rate notes
Bill of exchange maturing at call,

coupon rate of 2.65% - 2.75% per annum
Bill of exchange maturing at call,

coupon rate of 2.85% -3.52% per annum
Bill of exchange maturing in 2012,

coupon rate of 2.25% - 4.15% per annum
Bill of exchange maturing in 2013,

coupon rate of 2.45 -3.45% per annum

Total
Lesscurrent portion of long-term borrowings

Long-term borrowings, net

Consolidated

2012 2011
Domestic Foreign Total Domestic Foreign Total
Million Million Million Million Million Million
Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht
- 2,566 2,566 - 2,547 2,547
6,552 - 6,552 - - -
- - - - 1,309 1,309
- - 106 - 106
2,322 678 3,000 2,322 678 3,000
3,000 - 3,000 - - -
544 - 544 544 - 544
12,418 3,244 15,662 2,972 4,534 7,506
2,507 - 2,507 - - -
- - 1,480 - 1,480
- - 31,330 - 31,330
8,057 - 8,057 - - -
10,564 - 10,564 32810 - 32810
22,982 3,244 26,226 35,782 4,534 40,316
(17,660) - (17,660) (33,34) - (33,34)
5,322 3,244 8,566 2,428 4,534 6,962
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19  Debtissued and borrowinggcont'd)

The Bank
2012 2011
Domestic Foreign Total Domestic Foreign Total
Million Million Million Million Million Million
Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht

Hybrid instrument
Hybrid securities of Baht 2,504illion

maturing in 2019 - 2,566 2,566 - 2,547 2,547
Short term debentures
Short term debentures maturing in 2013,

coupon rate of 2.76% - 2.95% per annum 6,552 - 6,552 - - -
Subordinated debentures
Subordinated debentures of USD 40 million,

maturing in 2017 - - - - 1,309 1,309
Subordinated debentures of
Baht 3,000 million, maturing in 2021 2,322 678 3,000 2,322 678 3,000
Subordinated debentures of
Baht 3,000 million, maturing in 2022 3,000 - 3,000 - - -
Subordinated debentures maturing in 2003 544 - 544 544 - 544
12,418 3,244 15,662 2,866 4,534 7,400

Fixed-rate notes
Bill of exchange maturing at call,

coupon rate of 2.65% - 2.75% per annum 2,507 - 2,507 - - -
Bill of exchange maturing at call,
coupon rate of 2.85% -3.52% per annum - - - 1,480 - 1,480
Bill of exchange maturing in 2012,
coupon rate of 2.25% - 4.15% per annum - - - 31,330 - 31,330
Bill of exchange maturing in 2013,
coupon rate of 2.45 - 3.45% per annum 8,057 - 8,057 - - -
10,564 - 10,564 32810 - 32810
Total 22,982 3,244 26,226 35,676 4,534 40,210
Lesscurrent portion of long-term borrowings (17,660) - (17,660) (33,34 - (33,34
Long-term borrowings, net 5,322 3,244 8,566 2,322 4,534 6,856

(@) As at 31 December 2012, the Bank had domasghtiordinated debentures of Baht 544 million (31 Dawer
2011: Baht 544 million) which had been transferi@the Bank since the merger date.

(b)  On 16 February 2007, the Bank issued 400 umedaunits of a subordinated debenture with a fateevof
USD100,000 each to overseas investors, or fora t§tUSD 40 million. The notes have a tenor of 10
years, maturing on 20 February 2017, with an eadigmption call option in 2012. They bear intestshe
six-month LIBOR US dollar deposit rate plus 350ibgmints from year 1-5, and at the six-month LIBOR
US dollar deposit rate plus 525 basis points fragarysix onwards. Interest is due on 20 February and
20 August every year (under the specified condifion

There is a call option in the following three cases

1. If there are significant changes in tax lawd therease the tax liabilities of the issuer

2. If the issuer wishes to redeem the debentundg @athe optional redemption date after 5 years
3. If the debentures cannot be counted as lowel tieibordinated debt of the issuer.

In all three cases, early redemption must be ppeesed by the Bank of Thailand.

Certain covenants are stipulated in the debentgreements, including prohibitions on borrowing,
providing guarantees, or creating any other olibgat which are or purport to be subordinated déithe
Bank, within 120 days after the issue date.

On 21 February 2012, the Bank exercised its optmrearly redeem all the unsecured subordinated
debentures amounting to USD 40 million, maturing2®nFebruary 2017, with an early redemption call
option in 2012. This early redemption was approvgdoT’s notification Tor Por Tor. For Kor Kor (21
102/2555 about the pre-redemption of unsecuredrdinaied debenture.
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19  Debtissued and borrowinggcont'd)

(c) On 27 March 2009, the Bank issued 2,500,000utative hybrid instruments with a face value of Bah
1,000 each and an issue price of Baht 1,000 each tatal of Baht 2,500 million. The debentureséav
tenor of 10 years, maturing on 27 March 2019, withearly redemption call option 5 years after gsué
date. They bear interest at 5.25% p.a. for the firgears, and 6.75% p.a. for years 6-10. Intesedue
every 27 March and 27 September (under the spddaifieditions).

There is a call option in the following two cases:
1. If there are significant changes in tax lawg therease the tax liabilities of the issuer.
2. If the debentures cannot be counted as hylmidItdebt of the Bank.

In both cases, early redemption must be pre-apprbyeahe Bank of Thailand.

(d) On 14 July 2011, the Bank issued unsecuredrdiiaded debentures with a bond holder’s represigata
The subscription unit is at 3,000,000 units at BBBOO each for a total of Baht 3,000 million cargya
constant interest rate of 5.35% per annum with yangat of interest every six months to individuaan
institution investors. The debenture has a terfidtOoyears and is due on 14 July 2021 accordintieo
prospectus. The Bank may exercise its right ttyeadeem the debenture after 5 years subjectcospl
by the Bank of Thailand under the conditions stategrospectus.

The Bank has an approval from Bank of Thailand dant the subordinated debenture as tier 2 capital
according to the correspondence For Kor Kor (08/3854.

(e) On 9 November 2012, the Bank issued unsecwgardinated debenturés financial institutions and high
net worth investors. The subscription unit is &08,000 units at Baht 1,000 each and issued pfi@aht
1,000 each for an aggregate amount of Baht 3,00lbmicarrying constant interest rate of 4.80% per
annum with a payment of interest every six monitiee debenture has a tenor of 10 years and is due on
9 November 2022. The Bank may exercise its righgdrly redeem the debenture after 5 years sutgject
approval by the Bank of Thailand.

The Bank has an approval from Bank of Thailand dant the subordinated debenture as tier 2 capital
according to the correspondence For Kor Kor (05912555.

(H  Bank issued short term debentures of Baht & &illion with fixed interest rates, interest wile paid on
maturity date.

20 Provisions

Consolidated The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht
Provision for contingent loss from legal cases 36 107 36 107
Reserve for off-statements of financial positiomise 282 297 282 297
Provision for assets damaged from flood - 11 - 11
Provision for employee benefits 1,092 1,058 1,069 1,007
Provision for putback option of sold debtors 20 34 20 34
Total provisions 1,430 1,507 1,407 1,456
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20  Provisions(cont'd)

Provision for employee benefits

As at 31 December 2012, the pension benefits wetg provided to 514 employees (31 December 2011:

542 employees) who were former employees of thetBiank of Bangkok Public Company Limited which are
unfunded obligations. The pension benefits are gfgstovisions for employee benefits as follows:

Consolidated The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht
Present value of post-employment benefit obligation 1,092 1,058 1,069 1,007
Provision for employee benefits 1,092 1,058 1,069 1,007
Movements of provision for pension funds are alovas:
Consolidated The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht
Beginning balance before adjusted 1,058 545 1,007 545
Sales of investmenin subsidiary (32) - - -
Adjustment to the beginning balance - 476 - 436
Beginning balance after adjustment 1,026 1,021 1,007 981
Current service costs 80 66 75 57
Interest costs 35 45 34 43
Lesspension benefits paid for the year (49) (72) 47) (71)
Lessemployees transferred between
the Bank and subsidiaries - 3) - ?3)
Ending balance 1,092 1,058 1,069 1,007

Expenses for employee benefits were presented pbgee expenses in the statements of compreheimgsivene

as follows:
Consolidated The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht
Current service costs 80 66 75 57
Interest costs 35 45 34 43
Total 115 111 109 100

Significant assumptions used in the actuarial datimn are summarised as follows:

Discount rate
Salary increase rate
Pre-retirement mortality rate

Disability rate
Pre-retirement withdrawal rate
Retirement age

For the years ended 31 December

2012 and 2011

3.5%
5%
75.00% of

Thai Mortality Ordinary Bble 200¢
10% of pre-retirement mortality rate

From Thai Withdrawal Table
60 years old
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21 Other liabilities

Consolidated The Bank

2012 2011 2012 2011

Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht

Credit support liabilities on derivatives 395 333 395 333
Amount due to Department of Alternative Energy

Development and Efficiency 519 622 519 622

Other liabilities awaiting accounts transfer 366 298 366 298

Securities business payable - 325 - -

Accrued interest 599 657 599 657

Deferred commission 340 388 340 388

Accrued expense 956 944 870 804

Others 624 377 394 222

Total 3,799 3,944 3,483 3,324

22 Share capital

Consolidated and the Bank
2012 2011
Number Amount Number Amount
Million shares Million Baht Million shares Million Baht

Registered
Beginningof theyear
- Ordinary shares 16,316 8,158 16,316 8,158
Increase of registered capital 9,790 4,895 - -
Endof theyear 26,106 13,053 16,316 8,158

Issued and paid up
Beginningof theyear

- Ordinary shares 16,316 8,158 16,316 8,158
Issurancef new share 4,769 2,384 - -
Endof theyear 21,085 10,542 16,316 8,158

On 12 April 2012, the Annual GeneralMeeting of ShareholderdNo.18 approved an increase in the registered
capital of the Bank from Baht 8,156 million to Bal®,053 million by issuing 9,790 million of new damdry
shares with a par value of Baht0 each and an offering price of Baht 1, resulting Baek has 26,106 million
ordinary shares. The Bank registered an increais capital with the Ministry of Commerce on 2pri 2012.

On 7 August 2012, the Bank has registered its asgeof paid-up share capital with the Departmemusiness
Development, the Ministry of Commerce. Therefotee paid-up share capital are Baht 10,542 millionctvlis
21,085 million ordinary shares with a par valuéaht 0.50.
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23 Other reserves
Consolidated The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht
Revaluation surplus on assets 1,155 1,210 1,155 1,210
Revaluation surplus on change in
value of investments 206 137 206 122
Share based payment 2 1 2 1
Total 1,363 1,348 1,363 1,333
(@) Revaluation surplus on assets

This represents surplus on assets arising fromuatian of land and premises. The surplus is ais®xatto
retained earnings on a straight-line basis overeh®ining life of the related assets and transtedirectly

to retained earnings.

Balance - beginning of the year
Add increase revaluation
Lessamortisation

Decrease from sale of office building

Balance - end of the year

Consolidated and the Bank

2012 2011
Million Baht  Million Baht
1,210 567
- 649
(45) (5)
(10) (1)
1,155 1,210

The revaluation surplus on assets can neitherfeetafgainst deficit nor used for dividend payment.

(b)  Revaluation surplus (deficit) on change in eahd investments
Consolidated The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht

Revaluation surplus on investments:

Debt securities 46 68 46 68

Equity securities 165 92 165 77
Total 211 160 211 145

Revaluation deficit on investments:

Debt securities €) (23) 6) (23)
Total ©) (23) (%) (23)
Revaluation surplus on change in

value of investments, net 206 137 206 122
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25

Statutory reserve

Under the Public Company Limited Act B.E. 2535, Benk is required to set aside a statutory resef least
5% of its net profit for the year, after deductiagcumulated deficit brought forward (if any), urtie reserve
reaches 10% of its registered share capital. Hsisrve cannot be used to pay dividend.

Capital funds

The primary objectives of the Bank’s capital mamaget are to maintain the Bank’s ability to contiragea going
concern and to maintain a capital adequacy ratacgordance with the Act on Undertaking of Bankinginess
B.E. 2551. The capital funds comprise:

Total capital Total capital
2012 to risk assets 2011 torisk assets
Million Baht % Million Baht %
Tier |
Issued and paid-up share capital 10,542 8,158
Share premium 3,868 1,483
Statutory reserve 188 130
Unappropriated surplus 2,440 1,300
Total tier | capital fund 17,038 10.27 11,071 7.65
Tierll
Revaluation surplus on assets 740 368
Reserve for loans classified as pass 546 413
Long-term subordinated debentures 2,500 4,429
Hybrid securities 6,000 2,500
Revaluation surplus on capital
securities available-for-sale 74 35
Total tier Il capital fund 9,860 5.94 7,745 5.35
Total capital funds 26,898 16.21 18,816 13.00

The Bank and its financial group will disclose ¢apimaintenance information as at 31 December 2812
accordance with the Notification of the Bank of Waad RE: Public Disclosure of Capital Maintenance
Information for Commercial Banks and Consolidategévision on its website at www.cimbthai.cevithin four
months after the statements of financial positiated
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26

Share-based payments

a)

Management Equity Scheme (MES)

The scheme was launched on 1 March 2004 as a penfice-linked compensation whereby a substantial
shareholders of CIMB Group Holding Berhad. Theibllgy for participation in the Scheme shall bethe
discretion of the Nomination and Remuneration Cotteai of CIMB Group. Entitlements of eligible
members of the Scheme are non-assignable and aosfdrable whereby the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee of CIMB Group Holding Berhadministers the Scheme on behalf of the
substantial shareholders. The entitlements grargsetlin proportions over the various exercise pkiand

the Scheme expires on 31 May 2012.

The weighted average fair value of entitlementsigré, determined using the binomial valuation mpdel
was MYR 4.89 each at grant date. The basic inpete was follows:

Expected volatility 32%
Expected dividend yield 1.43%
Expected option life 1.75 years
Weighted average share price at grant date MYR 6.6
Weighted average risk-free interest rate 3.01%

The volatility, measured as the standard deviatiblaily share price returns, was based on stzdisti
analysis of daily prices over the last 2 years.

Details of the movement in the number of entitletaeutstanding are as follows:

Entitlements Entitlements

2012 2011 Exercise price

units ‘000 units ‘000 MYR per stock
Beginning of financial year 250 284 MYR 1.74
Granted during financial year - - MYR 1.74
Exercised during financial year (250) (34) MYR 1.74
End of financial year - 250 MYR 1.74

The weighted average share price at the time eofisgewas MYR 7.19 in 2012 (2011: MYR7.34).

For 2011, the weighted average remaining contratifeavas 2 months. Out of the unexercised emtidats
of 250,000 shares, entitlements are exercisatiteeatnd of the reporting period.
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Share-based payment&ont'd)

b)

Equity Ownership Plan (EOP)

The EOP was introduced in March 2011 where the Baitkgrant ordinary shares of CIMB Group
Holding Berhad to eligible employees.

The eligibility of participation in the EOP shalktat the discretion of the Group Compensation Revie
Committee of CIMB Group Holding Berhad which sultgeto continued employment.

Upon termination of employment other than retiremelsability or death, any unreleased shares lvll

disposed of at market price and proceeds receiviétbevdonated to the CIMB Foundation in Malaysia o
behalf of the employee. In the event of retiremdigability or death of the eligible employee, te&ase of

shares will be accelerated to the date of ternonatif employment and the shares will be assignatieo

designated beneficiary.

The weighted average fair value of shares granmtetthis financial period, which were purchased caer
period of 10 trading days before awarding to thegilde employees of the Bank, was MYR7.70 per share
(2011: MYR8.27 per share).

Movement in the number of ordinary shares undeE@® are as follows:

Number of ordinary
shares under the EOP as at
2012 2011
units '000 units '000

Beginning of financiayear 20 -
Awarded during financial year 56 26
Released during financial year (27) (6)

End of financial year 49 20

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Banlpsstare-based payment reserves and expenses argounti
to Baht 3.1million (for the year ended 31 Decent@ll: Baht 1.4 million).
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27  Important positions and performance classified ¥ type of domestic or foreign transactions

27.1 Position classified by type of transaction

Consolidated

2012 2011
Domestic  Foreign Total Domestic  Foreign Total
Million Million Million Million Million Million
Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht
Total assets 194,010 7,506 201,516 164,430 3,593 168,023
Interbank and money
market items, net 9,472 656 10,128 3,156 2,049 5,205
Derivative assets 1,681 793 2,474 1,863 664 2,527
Investments, net and
investments in subsidiaries, net 40,169 308 40,477 32,139 558 32,697
Loans to customers and accrt
interest receivables, net 130,055 5,749 135,804 115,889 323 116,212
Deposits 134,098 1,036 135,134 100,817 757 101,574
Interbank and money
market items 9,790 1,520 11,310 2,145 2,642 4,787
Derivative liabilities 1,201 801 2,002 676 1,595 2,271
Debt issued and borrowings 22,983 3,244 26,227 35,782 4,534 40,316
The Bank
2012 2011
Domestic  Foreign Total Domestic  Foreign Total
Million Million Million Million Million Million
Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht
Total assets 192,763 7,506 200,269 162,958 3,593 166,551
Interbank and money
market items, net 9,438 656 10,094 2,528 2,049 4,577
Derivative assets 1,681 793 2,474 1,863 664 2,527
Investments, net and
investments in subsidiaries, net 41,048 308 41,356 33,857 558 34,415
Loans to customers and accrt
interest receivables, net 128,228 5,749 133,977 113,797 323 114,120
Deposits 134,249 1,036 135,285 100,534 757 101,291
Interbank and money
market items 8,840 1,520 10,360 1,908 2,642 4,550
Derivative liabilities 1,201 801 2,002 676 1,595 2,271
Debt issued and borrowings 22,983 3,244 26,227 35,676 4,534 40,210
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27  Important positions and performance classified ¥ type of domestic or foreign transactiongcont’d)

27.2 Performance classified by type of transaction

Consolidated

2012 2011
Domestic  Foreign Total Domestic  Foreign Total
Million Million Million Million Million Million
Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht
Interest income 10,150 18 10,168 8,005 80 8,085
Interest expenses (4,793) (168) (4,961) (3,200) (246) (3,452)
Net interest income (expenses) 5,357 (150) 5,207 4,799 (166) 4,633
Net fee and services income 865 - 865 583 - 583
Other operating income 2,256 - 2,256 2,156 - 2,156
Other operating expenses (5,325) - (5,325) (4,901) - (4,901)
Bad debts, doubtful debts and
impairment losses (1,389) - (1,389) (1,077) - (1,077)
Profit (loss) from continuing
operation before income
tax expense 1,764 (150) 1,614 1,560 (166) 1,394
The Bank
2012 2011
Domestic  Foreign Total Domestic  Foreign Total
Million Million Million Million Million Million
Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht
Interest income 9,154 18 9,172 7,346 79 7,425
Interest expenses (4,751) (168) (4,919) (3,196) (245) (3,441)
Net interest income (expenses) 4,403 (150) 4,253 4,150 (166) 3,984
Net fee and services income 690 - 690 433 - 433
Other operating income 2,228 - 2,228 2,124 - 2,124
Other operating expenses (4,533) - (4,533) (4,253) - (4,253)
Bad debts, doubtful debts and
impairment losses (1,138) - (1,138) (942) - (942)
Profit (loss) from continuing
operation before income
tax expense 1,650 (150) 1,500 1,512 (166) 1,346
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29

30

Interest income

Interbank and money market items
Investments and trading transactions
Investments in debt securities

Loans

Hire-purchase and financial lease income

Others

Interest income

Interest expenses

Deposits
Interbank and money market items
Contribution fees to thBeposit Protection
Agency and FIDF
Debt securities issued
- Subordinated debentures
- Others
Others

Interest expenses

Net fees and services income

Fees and services income
Acceptances, aval and guarantees
ATM and debit card fees
Brokerage income
Management fees

Others
Fees and services income

Fees and services expenses
Collection fees
ATM fees
Others

Fees and services expenses

Net fees and services income

Consolidated The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht
140 257 140 267
113 54 113 54
1,115 635 1,115 635
7,356 6,113 7,803 6,467
1,443 1,024 - -
1 2 1 2
10,168 8,085 9,172 7,425

Consolidated The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
Million Baht Million Baht million baht million baht
3,159 2,014 3,160 2,014
239 105 196 94
629 386 629 386
299 299 299 299
631 644 631 644
4 4 4 4
4,961 3,452 4,919 3,441

Consolidated The Bank
2012 2011 201z 2011
Million Baht Million Baht million baht  million baht
124 102 132 108
120 110 120 110
282 190 216 137
139 94 139 94
346 260 293 204
1,011 756 900 653
52 45 138 112
39 31 39 31
55 97 33 77
146 173 210 220
865 583 690 433
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32

33

Gains on tradings and foreign exchange transactis, net

Gains (losses) on trading and foreign exchange

transactions

Foreign currency and foreign exchange rate

derivatives
Interest rate derivatives
Debt securities

Gains on trading and foreign exchange

transactions, net

Consolidated The Bank
2012 2011 201z 2011
Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht
331 655 331 655
135 (315) 135 (315)
22 12 22 12
488 352 488 352

Gains on financial instrument designated at faivalue through profit or loss

Gains on financial instruments designated at falue through profit or loss consist of the follogiitems

Net change in fair value

Bills of exchange
Debentures
Interestexpenses

Total

Gains on investments

Gains (losses) on sales
Available-for-sale
Held-to-maturity
General investments

Investments in subsidiaries

Gains on sales, net

Losses on impairment
General investments

Losses on impairment, net

Gains on investments, net

Consolidated and the Bank

2012

Million Baht

19

1

(19)

1

Consolidated The Bank

201z 2011 2012 2011
Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht
83 - 83 -

1 1 1 1

(3) - 3 -
85 90 58 90
166 91 139 91
(13) (11) (13) (11)
(13) (11) (13) (11)
153 80 126 80
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34  Other operating income

Consolidated The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht
Gains on sales of premises and equipment 11 82 10 81

Reversal of losses on revaluation land and

building - 98 - 98
Gain on sale of non-performing loan - 200 - 200
Income from reversal of bad debts 11 12 - -
Dividend income 117 198 150 198
Other income 131 124 109 106
Other operating income 270 714 269 683

35 Bad debts, doubtful debts and impairment losses

Consolidated The Bank
201z 2011 201z 2011
Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht
Held-to-maturity debt instruments (12) - (12) -
Losses on debt restructuring 39 2 39 2
Loans 1,362 1,075 1,111 940
Total 1,389 1,077 1,138 942

36  Corporate income tax

After adding back certain non-deductible expensesmovisions to the tax computation and dedudiixgexempt
income from the profit/loss for the period, the tagses brought forward by the Bank exceeded théoeme for
the period. Therefore, no corporate income taxpegsble for the year.

The corporate income tax presented in the condelidéinancial statements is the corporate incormeofathe
Bank’s subsidiaries.
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37  Operating result of disposal group classified dseld-for-sale

Assets of disposal group classified as held-foe-saé investments in subsidiary that were appréwdse sold by
the Annual General Meeting for the year 2012 adogrtb Note 8.7 to the financial statements.

a) Operating result of disposal group classified akeld-for-sale

Consolidated

2012 2011

Million Baht Million Baht

Revenue 329 400
Expense (275) (418)
Profit before tax of discontinued operations 54 (18)
Tax - -
Profit after tax of discontinued operations 54 (18)%

@ Profit after tax of discontinued operations is i#d in the consolidated income statements foyehe ended 31 December 2011.

b) Cash flows of assets of disposal group classifiad held-for-sale

Consolidated
2012 2011
Million Baht Million Baht

Operating cash flows 14 (525)
Investing cash flows (14) (75)
Financing cash flows - 600

Total cash flows

38 Provident fund

The Group and their employees have jointly esthblisa provident fund in accordance with the Pravidaind
Act B.E. 2530. The employees contribute to the funthnaged by Tisco Asset Management Company Ldmite
at rate of 3%-5% of their basic salaries, and thakBand its subsidiaries contribute at rate of &bl disburse to
staff when their employment is terminated under tévens and conditions of the fund. For the yeareend
31 December 2012, Baht 88 million was contributed the fund by the Bank and its subsidiaries
(31 December 2011: Baht 79 million), of which then® contributed Baht 75 million (31 December 20Baht 68
million).

39  Earnings per share

Earningsper share as presented in the consolidated anddtatgments of comprehensive income are calculated
by dividing net income for the year by the weighte@rage number of ordinary shares held by oussidesholders
in issue during the year (Note 22).

There are no potential dilutive ordinary sharessue for the years ended 31 December 2012 arid 201
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40 Encumbrance of assets

40.1 Assets used as collateral

The Group placed assets such as cash at bankgjoaadhment and state enterprise bonds as collateral

against the following:

Consolidated The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
Million Baht  Million Baht  Million Baht  Million Baht
Securitiessoldunderrepurchase
agreements 2,968 - 2,968 -
Utilities usage 7 6 7 6
Guarantees on loans - 45 - -
Total 2,975 51 2,975 6

40.2 Assets subject to obligation

The Bank has long-term investments in certain gageturities and other fixed assets obtained asultr
of debt restructuring. Under the debt restructuraggeements, the Bank is obligated to dispose ®f th
investment after agreed periods, which range froyedr to 10 years commencing from the date of & d

restructuring agreements.

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the investmebjed to such obligation are as follows:

Consolidated and the Bank

2012 2011
Cost Cost
Year of maturity Number  Million Baht Number  Million Baht
2012 onwards 2 177 1 -
Assets subject to obligation 2 177 1 -
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41  Commitments and contingent liabilities

41.1 Commitments

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, significant comenits of the Bank consist of:

The Bank
2012 2011
Domestic Foreign Total Domestic Foreign Total
Million Million Million Million Million Million
Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht
Avals to bills and guarantees of
loans:
Avals to bills® 814 - 814 481 - 481
Guarantees on loans 10 - 10 10 30 40
Total avals to bills and guarantees
on loans 824 - 824 491 30 521
Liability under unmatured
import bills:
Liability under unmatured import bills - 553 553 - 578 578
Letters of credit:
Letters of credit 42 1,886 1,928 234 1,833 2,067
Other commitments:
Forward and spot contracts
- Bought - 36,452 36,452 - 24,770 24,770
- Sold - 33,774 33,774 - 24,905 24,905
Cross currency and interest rate
swap contract
- Bought - 4,010 4,010 - 2,583 2,583
- Sold - 6,684 6,684 - 2,954 2,954
Futures contracts
- Bought - 92 92 - 1,268 1,268
- Sold - - - - - -
Interest rate swap contracts
- Fixed rate payee 154,143 10,741 164,884 99,951 10,363 110,314
- Floating rate payee 160,447 14,428 174,875 103,532 12,262 115,794
Foreign exchange option
- Call option sales contracts - 540 540 - 148 148
- Put option sales contracts - 227 227 - 304 304
- Call option purchase contracts - 1,050 1,050 - 232 232
- Put option purchase contracts - 44 44 - 77 77
Undrawn bank overdrafts 10,312 - 10,312 9,326 - 9,326
Investments
- Bought 3,231 - 3,231 10,114 - 10,114
- Sold 3,081 - 3,081 10,019 - 10,019
Other commitments
Other guarantees 9,087 794 9,881 7,458 782 8,240
Other commitments 340,301 108,836 449,137 240,400 80,648 321,048
Total commitments 341,167 111,275 452,442 241,125 83,089 324,214

@ As at 31 December 2012, the Bank avaled note payald subsidiary amounting to Baht 550 million 3écember 2011 : Baht
400 million).
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Commitments and contingent liabilities(cont’d)

41.2 Contingent liabilities

(@)

(b)

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the Groupth®dbllowing contingent liabilities in connection
with court cases in which the Group have been sisedefendants in the Court. The lawsuits were
mainly lodged to claim compensation and the managevelieves that they will have no significant
impact on the Group once they are finalised:

Consolidated and the Bank

2012 2011
Million Baht Million Baht

Sum claimed in cases where the Group is sole daefénd 442 442
Sum claimed in cases where the Group
is co-defendant

- Sum of claims that can be specifically attributedhe Group 1,189 253
- Sum of claims that cannot be specifically attréal

to the Group 24,591 24,591
Total 26,222 25,286

In the above court cases, Baht 24,500 million esldd claims against the Bank in cases where it is
co-defendants with TAMC and other banks. The pifgniodged the claims in respect of transfers of
non-performing loans from various banks to TAMC.wéwer, the Bank believes that the outcomes
of the cases will not cause material loss becahsetransfers were made in accordance to the
Emergency Decree Establishing the Thai Asset Managé Corporation B.E. 2544. In addition,
transfers of loans from the Bank to TAMC of abowathB959 million occurred before the merger of
the Bank.

As at 31 December 2012 there were cases in wheleahrt decided in favor of the plaintiffs, with
sums claimed totalling Baht 9 million (in cases whé¢he Bank was the direct defendant) and
Baht 32 million (in cases where the Bank was ceadéént). However, the Bank is in the process of
appealing the decisions (31 December 2011: Bamiillidn and Baht 13 million, respectively).

As at 31 December 2012, the Group recognised pomasfor contingent losses from legal cases of
approximately Baht 36 million (31 December 2011hB&06 million). The management concluded
that such provisions were adequate to cover angilpeslosses from these legal cases. In addition,
the Group recognised reserve for off-statemeninafiicial position items related to guarantees which
the Group have been sued as defendants by Bahtilian (31 December 2011: Baht 284 million).

The Bank has commitments in respect of lossirshdif any) under the agreement to transfer non-
performing to TAMC, as discussed under Note 4th&financial statements.
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42

Commitments and contingent liabilities(cont’d)

41.3 Commitments under long-term leases

41.4

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the Group hadeghiato a number of agreements to lease land,

buildings and vehicles for periods longer thanmbnths, under which future rental fees can be suisethas
follows:

Lease periods Consolidated The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
Million Baht ~ Million Baht ~ Million Baht ~ Million Baht
1-3years 333 262 293 221
4 -5 years 20 110 20 110
6 - 10 years 9 12 9 12
11 - 30 years 19 7 19 7
Total 381 391 341 350

Other commitments

As at 31 December 2012, the Bank had other commisres it entered into various agreements reldting
computer system development consultancy servicgsamputer system and software development. As at
31 December 2012, the Bank was obligated to payrthdr Baht 16 million and USD 2,274 under such
agreements (31 December 2011: Baht 15 million a8® W0,000).

Related party transactions

Enterprises and individuals that directly or indithg through one more intermediaries, control, & eontrolled
by, or are under common control with the Bank ambis&liaries, including holding companies, subsid&and
fellow subsidiaries are related parties of the Ban# subsidiaries. Associates and individuals ogndirectly or
indirectly, an interest in the voting power of tBank and subsidiaries that gives them significafiuénce over
the enterprise, key management personnel, includiregtors and officers of the Bank and subsidgasged close
members of the family of these individuals and canips associated with these individuals also cistrelated
parties.

In considering each possible related-party relatiqm attention is directed to the substance ofréhationship,
and not merely the legal form.

During the periods, the Group had significant besitransactions with its related parties. Theses#actions have
been conducted based on agreed upon contractewBeh summary of those transactions.
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Related-party transactiongcont'd)

Consolidated The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht
Subsidiaries
Revenue
Interest income - - 448 336
Fee income - - 33 10
Dividend income - - 33 -
Other income - - - 2
Expenses
Interest expenses 3 1 8 7
Premises and equipments expenses - (16) (20)
Fee expenses - - 1 -
Other expenses - 86 67
Parent company
Expenses:
Interest expenses 36 17 36 17
Premises and equipment expenses 4 - 4 -
Fee expenses 1 - 1 -
Related companies
Revenue:
Interest income 5 5 5 5
Fee income 60 - 60 -
Gain on selling investment
in subsidiary 86 - 58 -
Other income - 209 - 209
Expenses
Interest expenses 163 151 163 151
Premises and equipment expenses (7 - @) -
Fee expenses 100 129 100 129
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42  Related-party transactions(cont’d)

The outstanding balances of significant relatedyp#iansactions as at 31 December 2012 and 201llasire

follows:
Consolidated
2012
Average
loans Outstanding Other
outstanding loans Borrowings liabilities
Million Million Obligations  Other assets Deposits million million
Baht Baht  million baht million baht  million baht baht baht
Subsidiary company
Krung Thai Tanakit Finance Plc. - - - - - - 262
- - - - - - 262
Parent company
CIMB Bank Berhad - - 152 245 - 678 422
- - 152 245 - 678 422
Companies under common control
CIMB Bank (L) Ltd. - - - 385 - 2,566 45
CIMB-Principal Asset Management Co., Ltd. - - 1 - - - 4
CIMB Securities (Thailand) Co., Ltd. - - - - - - 69
Sathorn Asset Management Co., Ltd. - - - 1 48 - 24
CIMB-GK Securities (Thailand) Co., Ltd. - - - - - - 75
- - 1 386 48 2,566 217
Related companies
Other companies 116 111 - - 2 - -
116 111 - - 2 - -
Related persons 2 3 - - 97 - -
2 3 - - 97 - -
Consolidated
2011
Average
loans Outstanding Other
outstanding loans Borrowings liabilities
Million Million Obligations  Other assets Deposits Million Million
Baht Baht Million Baht  Million Baht  Million Baht Baht Baht
Subsidiary company
Krung Thai Tanakit Finance Plc. - - - - 259 - -
- - - - 259 - -
Parent company
CIMB Bank Berhad - - - 244 - 678 182
- - - 244 - 678 182
Companies under common control
CIMB Bank (L) Ltd. - - - 291 - 2,547 35
CIMB-Principal Asset Management
Co., Ltd. - - 1 - 25 - -
CIMB-Principal Global Bond Fund - - - 4 - 428 1
Sathorn Asset Management Co., Ltd. - - - 1 562 - 25
- - 1 296 587 2,975 61
Related companies
Other companies 122 119 - - 2 - -
122 119 - - 2 - -
Related persons 1 1 - - 83 9 -
1 1 - - 83 9 -
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Related-party transactions(cont'd)

Subsidiary companies

Center Auto Lease Co., Ltd.

CT Coll Co., Ltd.

Krung Thai Tanakit Finance Plc.
Worldlease Co., Ltd.

Parent company
CIMB Bank Berhad

Companies under common control

CIMB Bank (L) Ltd.

CIMB-Principal Asset Management Co., Ltd.
CIMB Securities (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
Sathorn Asset Management Co., Ltd.
CIMB-GK Securities (Thailand) Co., Ltd.

Related companies
Other Companies

Related persons

Subsidiary companies

CIMB Securities (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
Center Auto Lease Co., Ltd.

CT Coll Co., Ltd.

Krung Thai Tanakit Finance Plc.
Worldlease Co., Ltd.

Parent company
CIMB Bank Berhad

Companies under common control

CIMB Bank (L) Ltd.

CIMB-Principal Asset Management Co., Ltd.
CIMB-Principal Global Bond Fund

Sathorn Asset Management Co., Ltd.

Related companies
Other Companies

Related persons

The Bank
2012
Average
loans Outstanding Other
outstanding loans Borrowings liabilities
Million Million Obligations  Other assets Deposits Million Million
Baht Baht Million Baht  Million Baht  Million Baht Baht Baht
7,320 8,063 - 1 72 - -
5 6 - - 27 - 8
- - - - - - 262
1,306 1,645 550 1 52 - 1
8,631 9,714 550 2 151 - 271
- - 152 245 - 678 422
- - 152 245 - 678 422
- - - 385 - 2,566 45
- - 1 - - - 4
- - - - - - 69
- - - 1 48 - 24
- - - - - - 75
- - 1 386 48 2,566 217
116 111 - - 2 - -
116 111 - - 2 - -
2 3 - - 97 - -
2 3 - - 97 - -
The Bank
2011
Average
loans Outstanding Other
outstanding loans Borrowings liabilities
Million Million Obligations  Other assets Deposits Million Million
Baht Baht Million Baht  Million Baht  Million Baht Baht Baht
190 - - - 94 - 1
5,158 6,208 - - 31 - -
- - - - 11 - 7
- - - - 259 - -
942 915 400 - 28 - -
6,290 7,123 400 - 423 - 8
- - - 244 - 678 182
- - - 244 - 678 182
- - - 291 - 2,547 35
- - 1 - 25 - -
- - 4 - 428 1
- - - 1 562 - 25
- - 1 296 587 2,975 61
122 119 - - 2 - -
122 119 - - 2 - -
1 1 - - 83 9 -
1 1 - - 83 9 -

As at 31 December 2012, the Bank avaled notes [eagéh subsidiary amounting to Baht 550 milliod (3ecember

2011: Baht 400 million).

The Bank pays interest on deposits made by refzdeikes at the normal rates granted to generalsiteps.
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42  Related-party transactiongcont'd)

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the Bank had conents in financial derivatives with related-party
companies as follows:

2012
Domestic Foreign Total
Million Baht ~ Million Baht  Million Baht

Parent company
Interest rate swap contracts

- Fixed rate payee 21,526 - 21,526
- Floating rate payee 33,988 4,420 38,408
Forward and spot contracts
- Bought - 841 841
- Sold - 60 60
Related company
Cross currency and interest rate swap contracts
- Sold - 2,855 2,855
Forward and spot contracts
- Sold - 22 22
2011
Domestic Foreign Total

Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht

Parent company
Interest rate swap contracts

- Fixed rate payee 4,775 - 4,775
- Floating rate payee 5,658 4,828 10,486
Forward and spot contracts

- Bought - 402 402
Related company

Cross currency and interest rate swap contracts

- Sold - 2,954 2,954
Forward and spot contracts

- Bought - 256 256
- Sold - 95 95

79



CIMB Thai Bank Public Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements
For the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011

43

Director and management remuneration

The Bank has not extended extraordinary monetafoamon-monetary benefits to Bank directors arecasives
at the level of executive vice president and highsrwell as to financial controllers. The benefiesre beyond
those normally granted, such as director’'s feegctbr's bonuses (if any), income tax, executivesary and
bonus (if any) and share based payment.

Consolidated The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht
Short-term employee benefits 259 282 237 211
Long-term employee benefits 9 9 9 9
Share based payment (note 26 b.) 3 1 3 1

Director and management
remuneration 271 292 249 221

The details of share based payment are as follows
Consolidated and The Bank

2012 2011

thousand thousand

units units

Share options of CIMB Group Holding Berhad - 240
Shares of CIMB Group Holding Berhad 49 20
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44

Financial information by segment

The Bank operates financial and banking businesdesteas its subsidiaries’ businesses involve gessjrfund
management, debt collection, asset managemenptiichase and leasing.

Financial information presented in the consoliddieancial statements for the years ended 31 Deee2®12 and

2011 are as follows:

Interest income
Interest expenses

Net interest income
Net fees and service income
Other operating income
Other operating expenses
Bad and doubtful debts

and impairment losses
Income tax expenses
Profit after tax of discontinued

operations

Net profit for the year

Interest income
Interest expenses

Net interest income
Net fees and service income
Other operating income
Other operating expenses
Bad and doubtful debts

and impairment losses
Income tax expenses
Profit (loss) after tax of

discontinued operations

Net profit (loss) for the year

2012
Hire -

Bank purchase Other
business busines: business Eliminations Total
Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht
9,172 1,445 - (449) 10,168
(4,919) (502) - 460 (4,961)
4,253 943 - 11 5,207
690 137 66 (28) 865
2,228 34 - (6) 2,256
(4,533) (736) (50) (6) (5,325)
(1,138) (276) - 25 (1,389)
- (74) “4) - (78)
- - 31 23 54
1,500 28 43 19 1,590

2011
Hire -

Bank purchase Other
business busines: business Eliminations Total
Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht
7,425 1,026 - (366) 8,085
(3,441) (376) - 365 (3,452)
3,984 650 - (1) 4,633
433 109 48 7 583
2,124 32 1 (1) 2,156
(4,253) (595) (42) (12) (4,901)
(942) (189) - 54 (1,077)
- (49) (2) - (51)
- - (38) 20 (18)
1,346 (42) (33) 54 1,325
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44  Financial information by segment(cont’d)

Total assets

Interbank and money market

items, net (assets)
Investments, net
Loans and accrued
interest receivables, net
Deposits

Interbank and money market

items (Liabilities)

Financial liabilities designated at
fair valuethrough profit or loss

Debt issued and borrowings

Hire-purchase

Bank business business Other business Eliminations Consolidated

2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

Million Baht  Million Baht  Million Baht  Million Baht  Million Baht  Million Baht  Million Baht  Million Baht  Million Baht  Million Baht
200,269 166,551 11,864 8,691 43 1,945 (10,660) (9,164) 201,516 168,023
10,094 4,577 158 93 27 868 (151) (333) 10,128 5,205
40,323 32,492 - - - 51 - - 40,323 32,543
133,977 114,120 11,439 8,451 6 693 (9,618) (7,052) 135,804 116,212
135,285 101,291 - - 354 (151) (71) 135,134 101,574
10,360 4,550 10,653 7,622 6 - (9,709) (7,385) 11,310 4,787
1,535 - - - - - - - 1,535 -
26,227 40,210 - - - 106 - - 26,227 40,316
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45 Financial instruments

The Bank’s financial instruments, as defined und@@ai Accounting Standard No.107 (previously No.48)
“Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentédtipnincipally comprise cash, interbank and monegrkat
items, loans, investments, deposits, liabilitieggide on-demand and borrowings. The financial risgsociated
with these financial instruments and how they aasmaged is described below.

45.1 Credit risk
As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the Bank hadottewing off-balance statements of financial pasiti
commitments. These are calculated according toptréod to maturity starting from the contract dates

given in the financial statements:

Consolidated

Counting from 31 Dec 2012 Counting from 31 Dec 2011
Less than Over Less than Over
1 year 1 year Total 1 year 1 year Total
Million Million Million Million Million Million
Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht
Aval to bills 234 30 264 81 - 81
Guarantees of loans 10 - 10 40 - 40
Liabilities under
unmatured import bills 553 - 553 578 - 578
Letters of credit 1,928 - 1,928 2,067 - 2,067
Other guarantees 9,673 208 9,881 8,098 141 8,240
The Bank
Counting from 31 Dec 2012 Counting from 31 Dec 2011
Less than Over Less than Over
1 year 1 year Total 1 year 1 year Total
Million Million Million Million Million Million
Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht
Aval to bills 784 30 814 481 - 481
Guarantees of loans 10 - 10 40 - 40
Liabilities under
unmatured import bills 553 - 553 578 - 578
Letters of credit 1,928 - 1,928 2,067 - 2,067
Other guarantees 9,673 208 9,881 8,099 141 8,240
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45  Financial instruments(cont’d)

45.2 Market risk
(&) Interest rate risk

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, financial assetdiabilities classified by type of interest ratere

as follows:
Consolidated
2012
Floating Fixed Non-interest
interest rate interest rate bearing Total
Descriptions Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht
Financial assets
Cash - - 3,133 3,133
Interbank and money market items, net 229 6,618 3,281 10,128
Investments, net 344 36,036 3,943 40,323
Investments in subsidiaries, net - - 154 154
Loans net of deferred revenue 87,553 51,291 2 138,846
Accrued income from Thai
Asset Management Corporation - - 2,354 2,354
Total financial assets 88,126 93,945 12,367 194,938
Financial liabilities
Deposits 36,385 96,857 1,892 135,134
Interbank and money market items 2,960 7,927 423 11,310
Liabilities payable on demand - - 345 345
Financial liabilities designated
at fair value through profit or loss 1,535 - - 1,535
Debt issued and borrowings 2,566 23,116 544 26,226
Total financial liabilities 43,446 127,900 3,204 174,550
Consolidated
2011
Floating Fixed Non-interest
interest rate interest rate bearing Total
Descriptions Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht
Financial assets
Cash - - 3,123 3,123
Interbank and money market items, net 2,094 603 2,508 5,205
Investments, net 859 23,593 8,091 32,543
Investments in subsidiaries, net - - 154 154
Loans net of deferred revenue 76,187 42,795 307 119,289
Accrued income from Thai
Asset Management Corporation - - 1,010 1,010
Total financial assets 79,140 66,991 15,193 161,324
Financial liabilities
Deposits 23,170 76,528 1,876 101,574
Interbank and money market items 1,222 1,901 1,664 4,787
Liabilities payable on demand - - 144 144
Debt issued and borrowings 3,857 35,915 544 40,316
Total financial liabilities 28,249 114,344 4,228 146,821
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45  Financial instruments(cont’d)

45.2 Market risk (cont’d)

(&) Interest rate risk (cont'd)

The Bank
2012
Floating Fixed Non-interest
interest rate interest rate bearing Total
Descriptions Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht
Financial assets
Cash - - 3,130 3,130
Interbank and money market items, net 193 6,618 3,283 10,094
Investments, net 344 36,036 3,943 40,323
Investments in subsidiaries, net - - 1,033 1,033
Loans net of deferred revenue 88,083 48,620 - 136,703
Accrued income from Thai
Asset Management Corporation - - 2,354 2,354
Total financial assets 88,620 91,274 13,743 193,637
Financial liabilities
Deposits 36,513 96,367 1,905 135,285
Interbank and money market items 2,560 7,377 423 10,360
Liabilities payable on demand - - 345 345
Financial liabilities designated at
fair valuethrough profit or loss 1,535 - - 1,535
Debt issued and borrowings 2,566 23,116 544 26,226
Total financial liabilities 43,174 127,360 3,217 173,751
The Bank
2011
Floating Fixed Non-interest
interest rate interest rate bearing Total
Descriptions Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht
Financial assets
Cash - - 3,121 3,121
Interbank and money market items, net 1,597 557 2,423 4,577
Investments, net 859 23,593 8,040 32,492
Investments in subsidiaries, net - - 1,923 1,923
Loans net of deferred revenue 75,894 40,922 131 116,947
Accrued income from Thai
Asset Management Corporation - - 1,010 1,010
Total financial assets 78,350 65,072 16,648 160,070
Financial liabilities
Deposits 22,864 76,533 1,894 101,291
Interbank and money market items 1,482 1,401 1,667 4,550
Liabilities payable on demand - - 144 144
Debt issued and borrowings 3,856 35,810 544 40,210
Total financial liabilities 28,202 113,744 4,249 146,195
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45  Financial instruments(cont’d)

45.2 Market risk (cont’d)

(&) Interest rate risk (cont'd)

Consolidated

2012
Repricing or maturity date
0-3 3-12 1-5 Over 5 No
At call months months years years maturity Total  Weighted average
Million Million Million Million Million Million Million interest rates
Transactions Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht %
Financial assets
Interbank and money
market items, net - 6,618 - - - - 6,618 2.85
Investments, net - 4,509 7,084 22,592 1,851 - 36,036 3.35
Loans net of deferred
revenue 173 23,624 13,550 11,302 2,642 - 51,291 7.51
Total financial assets 173 34,751 20,634 33,894 4,493 - 93,945
Financial liabilities
Deposits 3,773 55,336 36,286 1,462 - - 96,857 2.89
Interbank and money
market items 3,375 2,546 1,194 612 200 - 7,927 1.96
Debt issued and
borrowings 2,507 13,101 1,508 - 6,000 - 23,116 3.37
Total financial liabilities 9,655 70,983 38,988 2,074 6,200 - 127,900
Consolidated
2011
Repricing or maturity date
0-3 3-12 1-5 Over 5 No
At call months months years years maturity Total  Weighted average
Million Million Million Million Million Million Million interest rates
Transactions Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht %
Financial assets
Interbank and money
market items, net - 602 - - - 1 603 3.41
Investments, net - 550 907 19,582 2,554 - 23,593 3.08
Loans net of deferred
revenue 400 12,963 17,431 8,233 1,710 2,058 42,795 6.74
Total financial assets 400 14,115 18,338 27,815 4,264 2,059 66,991
Einancial liabilities
Deposits 8,506 40,566 26,560 896 - - 76,528 3.36
Interbank and money
market items - 1,719 180 2 - - 1,901 3.20
Debt issued and
borrowings 1,480 26,106 5,224 105 3,000 - 35,915 3.78
Total financial liabilities 9,986 68,391 31,964 1,003 3,000 - 114,344
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45  Financial instruments(cont’d)

45.2 Market risk (cont’d)

(&) Interest rate risk (cont'd)

The Bank
2012
Repricing or maturity date
0-3 3-12 1-5 Over 5 No
At call months months years years maturity Total  Weighted average
Million Million Million Million Million Million Million interest rates
Transactions Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht %
Financial assets
Interbank and money
market items, net - 6,618 - - - - 6,618 2.85
Investments, net - 4,509 7,084 22,592 1,851 - 36,036 3.35
Loans net of
deferred revenue 173 24,987 14,434 6,607 2,419 - 48,620 4.85
Total financial assets 173 36,114 21,518 29,199 4,270 - 91,274
Einancial liabilities
Deposits 3,773 55,342 36,291 1,462 - - 96,867 2.89
Interbank and money
market items 3,375 1,996 1,194 612 200 - 7,377 2.49
Debt issued and
borrowings 2,507 13,101 1,508 - 6,000 - 23,116 3.37
Total financial liabilities 9,655 70,439 38,993 2,074 6,200 - 127,360
The Bank
2011
Repricing or maturity date
0-3 3-12 1-5 Over 5 No
At call months months years years maturity Total  Weighted average
Million Million Million Million Million Million Million interest rates
Transactions Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht %
Financial assets
Interbank and money
market items, net - 557 - - - - 557 3.50
Investments, net - 550 907 19,582 2,554 - 23,593 3.27
Loans net of
deferred revenue 400 13,388 18,612 4,958 1,506 2,058 40,922 5.38
Total financial assets 400 14,495 19,519 24,540 4,060 2,058 65,072
Financial liabilities
Deposits 8,505 40,572 26,560 896 - - 76,533 3.36
Interbank and money
market items - 1,219 180 2 - - 1,401 2.86
Debt issued and
borrowings 1,480 26,106 5,224 - 3,000 - 35,810 3.77
Total financial liabilities 9,985 67,897 31,964 898 3,000 - 113,744

The outstanding balances of loans which have figainterest rates or fixed interest rates include

loans on which interest recognition is discontingesented before deducting allowance for doubtful
account losses).
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45  Financial instruments(cont’d)

45.2 Market risk (cont’d)
(&) Interest rate risk (cont'd)
The average balances of the financial assets ahdities of the Bank generating revenues and

expenses, calculated based on the average balantstanding during the period, and the average
interest and dividend rafer the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011beasummarised as

follows:

Consolidated

2012 2011
Interest Interest
Average and Average and
balances dividend Average balances dividend Average
Million Million rate Million Million rate
Baht Baht (%) Baht Baht (%)
Performing financial assets
Interbank and money market items, net 5,375 141 2.61 8,171 266 3.26
Investments, net 37,078 1,228 3.31 26,908 889 3.30
Loans 124,058 8,799 7.09 104,937 7,155 6.82
Total performing financial assets 166,511 10,168 140,016 8,310
Performing financial liabilities
Deposits 117,861 3,159 2.68 94,670 2,017 2.13
Interbank and money market items 8,805 238 2.70 5,380 105 1.95
Financial liabilities designated at
fair valuethrough profit or loss 1,029 19 2.76 - - -
Debt issued and borrowings 26,814 932 3.47 27,367 948 3.46
Total performing financial liabilities 154,509 4,348 127,417 3,070
The Bank
2012 2011
Interest Interest
Average and Average and
balances dividend Average balances dividend Average
Million Million rate Million Million rate
Baht Baht (%) Baht Baht (%)
Performing financial assets
Interbank and money market items, net 7,888 140 1.77 8,009 267 3.34
Investments, net 38,086 1,378 333 26,878 888 3.30
Loans 122221 7,804 6.39 102,733 6,467 6.30
Total performing financial assets 168,195 9,322 137,620 7,622
Performing financial liabilities
Deposits 115,916 3,160 2.73 94,519 2,014 2.13
Interbank and money market items 10,173 195 1.92 4,610 94 2.04
Financial liabilities designated at
fair valuethrough profit or loss 1,029 19 2.76 - - -
Debt issued and borrowings 26,783 930 3.48 27,247 943 3.46
Total performing financial liabilities 153,901 4,304 126,376 3,051
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45  Financial instruments(cont’d)

45.2 Market risk (cont'd)
(b)  Foreign exchange risk

In addition to the financial assets and liabilitdenominated in foreign currencies already discdose
in the relevant notes to the financial statemestate81 December 2012 and 2011, the Bank has the
following net foreign currency positions categodid®sy major foreign currencies:

(Unit: Equivalent to million USD)
Consolidated and the Bank

2012 2011
Other Other
UsD EURO* currencies* UsD EURO* currencies*
Spot 68.64 (0.51) 6.51 134.26 1.11 8.64
Forward
- Forward contract (70.4) 1.06 (4.59 (131.33) (0.42) (8.46)
Total 1.77 0.55 1.92 2.93 0.69 0.18

* EURO and other currencies are stated in USDvedprits.

45.3 Liquidity risk

The period to maturity calculated from the statetmeanf financial position datef financial instruments
outstanding as at 31 December 2012 and 2011 wdod@ss:

Consolidated

2012
Less than More than No
At call 1 year 1year maturity Total
Million Million Million Million Million
Descriptions Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht
Financial assets
Cash 3,130 - - 3 3,133
Interbank and money market items, net 3,509 6,619 - - 10,128
Investments, net 120 15,343 24,444 416 40,323
Investment in subsidiaries, net - - - 154 154
Loans net of deferred revenue 4,6710 52,984 81,191 - 138,846
Accrued income from Thai
Asset Managment Corporation - - 2,354 - 2,354
Total financial assets 11,430 74,946 107,989 573 194,938
Financial liabilities
Deposits 42,049 91,623 1,462 - 135,134
Interbank and money market items 3,358 7,140 812 - 11,310
Liabilities payable on demand 345 - - - 345
Financial liabilities designated
at fair valuethrough profit or loss - - 1,535 - 1,535
Debt issued and borrowings 3,051 14,610 8,566 - 26,227
Total financial liabilities 48,803 113,373 12,375 - 174,551

@ As at 31 December 2012, portions of loans clagkifie maturity-at-call in the consolidated and satealr financial statements,

of Baht 4,110 million and Baht 3,678 million respeely, (31 December 2011: Baht 4,110 million andhB 3,891 million
respectively) are outstanding balances of defadtiads classified as sub-standard or higher. Howeepayment schedules of
these loans are dependent upon new restructurimgjtems.
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45  Financial instruments(cont’d)

45.3 Liquidity risk (cont’d)

Consolidated

2011
Less than More than No
At call 1 year 1year maturity Total
Million Million Million Million Million
Descriptions Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht

Financial assets
Cash 3,121 - - 2 3,123
Interbank and money market items, net 4,602 602 - 1 5,205
Investments, net 183 6,710 24,831 819 32,543
Investment in subsidiaries, net - - - 154 154
Loans net of deferred revenue 3,858 48,404 67,027 - 119,289
Accrued income from Thai

Asset Managment Corporation - - 1,010 - 1,010

Total financial assets 11,764 55,716 92,868 976 161,324
Financial liabilities
Deposits 33,552 67,126 896 - 101,574
Interbank and money market items 2,256 2,307 224 - 4,787
Liabilities payable on demand 144 - - - 144
Debt issued and borrowings 2,024 31,330 6,962 - 40,316

Total financial liabilities 37,976 100,763 8,082 - 146,821

(1) As at 31 December 2012, portions of loans diassas maturity-at-call in the consolidated amgparated financial statements,
of Baht 4,012 million and Baht 3,678 million respeely, (31 December 2011: Baht 4,110 million andhB 3,891 million
respectively) are outstanding balances of defautiads classified as sub-standard or higher. Howeepayment schedules of
these loans are dependent upon new restructurimgjtems.
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45  Financial instruments(cont’d)

45.3 Liquidity risk (cont’d)

The Bank
2012
Less than More than No
At call 1 year 1year maturity Total
Million Million Million Million Million
Descriptions Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht
Financial assets
Cash 3,130 - - - 3,130
Interbank and money market items, net 3,475 6,619 - - 10,094
Investments, net 120 15,343 24,444 416 40,323
Investment in subsidiaries, net - - - 1,033 1,033
Loans net of deferred revenue 5,218W 55,231 76,254 - 136,703
Accrued income from Thai
Asset Managment Corporation - - 2,354 - 2,354
Total financial assets 11,943 77,193 103,052 1,449 193,637
Financial liabilities
Deposits 42,190 91,633 1,462 - 135,285
Interbank and money market items 3,358 6,190 812 - 10,360
Liabilities payable on demand 345 - - - 345
Financial liabilities designated
at fair valuethrough profit or loss - - 1,535 - 1,535
Debt issued and borrowings 3,051 14,610 8,566 - 26,227
Total financial liabilities 48,944 112,433 12,375 - 173,752
The Bank
2011
Less than More than No
At call 1 year 1year maturity Total
Million Million Million Million Million
Descriptions Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht
Financial assets
Cash 3,121 - - - 3,121
Interbank and money market items, net 4,020 557 - - 4,577
Investments, net 132 6,710 24,831 819 32,492
Investment in subsidiaries, net - - - 1,923 1,923
Loans net of deferred revenue 4972 49,397 63,278 - 116,947
Accrued income from Thai
Asset Managment Corporation - - 1,010 - 1,010
Total financial assets 11,545 56,664 89,119 2,742 160,070
Financial liabilities
Deposits 33,263 67,132 896 - 101,291
Interbank and money market items 3,149 1,399 2 - 4,550
Liabilities payable on demand 144 - - - 144
Debt issued and borrowings 2,024 31,330 6,856 - 40,210
Total financial liabilities 38,580 99,861 7,754 - 146,195

(1) As at 31 December 2012, portions of loans diassas maturity-at-call in the consolidated amgparated financial statements,
of Baht 4,012 million and Baht 3,678 million respeely, (31 December 2011: Baht 4,110 million andhB 3,891 million
respectively) are outstanding balances of defautiads classified as sub-standard or higher. Howeepayment schedules of
these loans are dependent upon new restructurimgjteams.
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45 Financial instruments(cont’d)

45.4 Fair value
Fair value represents the amount for which an asseld be exchanged or a liability settled between
knowledgeable and willing parties in an arm’'s-léntfansaction. The Bank has estimated the fairevalu
financial instruments as follows:

Consolidated

2012 2011
Book value Fair value  Book value Fair value
Description Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht

Financial assets
Cash 3,133 3,133 3,123 3,123
Interbank and money market items, net 10,128 10,128 5,205 5,205
Derivatives financial assets 2,474 2,474 2,527 2,527
Investments, net 40,323 40,496 32,543 32,642
Investment in subsidiaries, net 154 154 154 154
Loans to customers, net 135,804 135,804 116,212 116,212
Accrued income from Thai

Asset Management Corporation 2,354 2,354 1,010 1,010

Total financial assets 194,370 194,543 160,774 160,873
Financial liabilities
Deposits 135,134 135,134 101,574 101,574
Interbank and money market items 11,310 11,310 4,787 4,787
Liability payable on demand 345 345 144 144
Financial liabilities designated i i

at fair valuethrough profit or loss 1,535 1,535
Derivatives financial assets 2,002 2,002 2,271 2,271
Debt issued and borrowings 26,227 26,315 40,316 40,423

Total financial liabilities 176,553 176,641 149,092 149,199
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45 Financial instruments(cont’d)

45.4 Fair value(cont'd)

The Bank
2012 2011
Book value Fair value  Book value Fair value
Description Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht

Financial assets
Cash 3,130 3,130 3,121 3,121
Interbank and money market items, net 10,094 10,094 4577 4577
Derivatives financial assets 2,474 2,474 2,527 2,527
Investments, net 40,323 40,496 32,492 32,591
Investment in subsidiaries, net 1,033 1,033 1,923 1,923
Loans to customers, net 133,977 133,977 114,120 114,120
Accrued income from Thai

Asset Management Corporation 2,354 2,354 1,010 1,010

Total financial assets 193,385 193,558 159,770 159,869
Financial liabilities
Deposits 135,285 135,285 101,291 101,291
Interbank and money market items 10,360 10,360 4,550 4,550
Liability payable on demand 345 345 144 144
Financial liabilities designated

at fair valuethrough profit or loss 1,535 1,535 i i
Derivatives financial assets 2,002 2,002 2,271 2,271
Debt issued and borrowings 26,227 26,315 40,210 40,318

Total financial liabilities 175,754 176,641 148,466 148,574

45.5 Financial derivatives

The Bank engages in financial derivatives actigits required in the normal course of businessetet iits
clients’ needs and to manage risks arising frorctdlations in foreign exchange rates and interéssra

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, financial defieatas classified by their maturities were as ¥adto

Consolidated and the Bank

2012 2011
Less than Over Less than Over
1 year 1 year Total 1 year 1 year Total
Million Million Million Million Million Million

Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht
Forward and spot contracts
- Bought 35,357 1,095 36,452 24,368 402 24770
- Sold 33,621 153 33,774 24503 402 24,905
Cross-currency and interest rate swap contracts
- Bought 1,238 2,772 4,010 - 2,583 2,583
- Sold - 6,684 6,684 - 2,954 2,954
Future contracts
- Bought 92 - 92 1,268 - 1,268
Interest rate swap contracts
- Fixed-rate payee 58,485 106,399 164,884 37,002 73,312 110,314
- Floating-rate payee 70,539 104,336 174,875 48,529 67,265 115,794
Exchange rate options
- Call-option sales contract 539 - 539 148 - 148
- Put-option sales contract 227 - 227 304 - 304
- Call-option purchase contract 1,050 - 1,050 232 - 232
- Put-option purchase contract 44 - 44 7 - 7
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45

46

Financial instruments(cont’d)

45.5 Financial derivatives(cont’d)

The Bank sets up policies and relevant risk lirbitsvhich it requires risk reporting and control pedures
as a control over financial derivative activitid$e Bank realises that financial derivatives ineobredit
risk and considers credit limits for its customargyeneral. The same credit approval process us$esh w
granting loans to a customer is adopted for firgnderivative customers, so that the Bank is able t
maintain risk at acceptable levels. However, fianderivatives may cause the Bank to incur gains o
losses as they are sensitive to foreign exchartge oa interest rates, which can fluctuate matgras the
market situation changes.

Agreement to transfer non-performing loans to TMC

On 12 October 2001, the Bank entered into an agFeerto transfer non-performing loans to TAMC in
accordance with the Emergency Decree establishixigd.

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the Bank anddsatiss had loans transferred to TAMC as follows:

Consolidatedand the Bank

2012 2011

Book value Transfer price Book value Transfer price

Loans transferred to TAMC Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht Million Baht

CAP 82,487 21,932 82,487 21,932

NON CAP 15,774 3,465 15,774 3,465

Total 98,261 25,397 98,261 25,397

Less TAMC notes which have been redeemed by TAMC (25,115) (24,928)
Outstanding TAMC notes (included in long-term irtwesnts;

classified as held-to-maturity debt securitid&te 81 (a) 282 469

The Bank is to receive payment in the form of mamgferable, ten-year promissory notes, avalechéy-tDF and
bearing interest at the average deposit rate & thajor banks. As at 31 December 2012, the Bartgnised interest
receivable under these promissory notes amourtiBgtit 35 million (31 December 2011 : Baht 35 wil)i.

Share of the unrealised gain and losses arising fromanagement of the non-performing loans

Under the agreement to transfer non-performingddanr AMC, the Bank joined TAMC in sharing the gasnd
losses arising from TAMC'’s management of said lpamisich is to be allocated at the end of the agergm
starting from 1 July 2001. The Bank is liable fdiriaitial losses up to 20 percent of the trangbeice. Further
losses of up to another 20 percent of the trarsfiee are to be shared equally between the BankTaéiC,
while TAMC is liable for all remaining losses thafter. According to the agreement, expenses of TAMG@ the
interest expenses of promissory notes issued by CTAMI be included in the calculation of the gag®$ sharing.
Initial profits of up to 20 percent of the transfatice are to be shared equally between the BadkTaxMC.
Further gains which, when combined with the inipattion, do not exceed the difference betweerbtak value
of the transferred non-performing assets and thairsfer price, belong to the Bank. All remainingirng will
belong to TAMC. For loan debtors transferred aftcoet, collections received after deducting debt agement
expenses will belong to the Bank.

However, under the agreement to transfer CAP |danSAMC, on 17 November 2006, the Bank transferred
rights over future gain sharing to FIDF, althoubl Bank is still obligated to share losses with T&M
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46  Agreement to transfer non-performing loans to TMC (cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Bankdedaa gain sharing from TAMC for the NON CAP loans
which related to only those closed accounts thatBhnk entitled to share gain with TAMC amountingBaht
1,344 million (For the year ended 31 December 2@idht 1,010 million), excluding any gain which tBank
obliged to transfer to FIDF as mentioned above.e HBmount was recognised as a gain sharing from the
management of non-performing loans by TAMC in stast of comprehensive income and accrued incomm fro
TAMC in statement of financial position. Thereforehen combine the amount of gain sharing from TABIC
Baht 1,010 million which the bank recognised in 20the bank shows cumulative amount of Baht 2,38Hom

as accrued income.

As at 31 December 2012, the Bank’s managementeelithat no significant future losses would be ined.

Qutstanding issues with TAMC

As of 31 December 2012, the Bank and TAMC had antithg issues regarding the follow up of outstagdin
requisitions of original ownership documents angrajsal reports for collateral, and regarding théuation of
leasehold rights collateral with transfer pricesallong Baht 162 millionand interest of Baht 23 million
(31 December 2011: Baht 162 million and Baht 21liom). The Bank believes that these issues will mte a
material impact on the transfer price adjustmenthef loans and interest on TAMC notes, since thekBaas
given some of the original ownership documentsaugtaisal reports for collateral to TAMC.

With respect to the outstanding issue of the vaunabf leasehold rights, the Bank believes thattthasferable
leaseholds can be appraised or revalued. The Bamkhagement believes that there will not be anmatmpact
to the transfer price and relevant interest. Howefee conservative reasons, the Bank has recoatledance for
impairment of the TAMC promissory notes of Baht ®dlion (31 December 2011: Baht 54 million) in the
financial statements.

47  Post statement of financial position event

On 6 February 2013, the Bank settled the increaapdal in Worldlease Co., Ltd. amounting to Babtrsillion.
On 12 February 2013, Worldlease Co., Ltd. has tegid its increase of share capital with MinisthfCommerce.
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